Public Document Pack

Wirral Children’s Trust

Children’s Trust Board
Agenda

Friday, 11 September 2009 commencing at 9.00 am
R11, Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 APOLOGIES

2.

09:00 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

3.

09:10
NEW CHILDREN'S TRUST
UNDERSTANDING (Pages 1 - 16)

4.

09:20 APPRENTICESHIPS, SKILLS, CHILDREN AND LEARNING
BILL UPDATE (Pages 17 - 18)

5.

09:30 CHILDREN'S TRUST MEETINGS ARRANGEMENTS

6.

09:40 CONTACT POINT (Pages 19 - 22)

7.

09:50 SAFEGUARDING UPDATE QUARTER 1 (Pages 23 - 24)

8.

10:00
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
QUARTER 1 (Pages 25 - 48)

9.

10:10 LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT QUARTER 1

MEMORANDUM

YEAR

END

OF

AND

10:20 BREAK
10.

10:30 COMMISSIONING OF YOUTH HUBS (Pages 49 - 58)

11.

10:40 ACTIVITY FUND COMMISSIONING REPORT (Pages 59 - 76)

12.

10:50 AIMING HIGH FOR DISABLED CHILDREN COMMISSIONING
REPORT (Pages 77 - 88)

13.

11:00 LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN ADVOCACY SERVICES (Pages
89 - 92)

14.

11:10 PARENTING AND PREVENTION COMMISSIONING 0-19
RACIAL MINORITY ETHNIC FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES (Pages
93 - 96)

15.

11:20
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE'S PLAN

16.

11:30 COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (Pages 97 - 102)

17.

11:40 NHS WIRRAL CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMPARATIVE
INDICATORS
08/09

18.

11:50 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

19.

12:00 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING: 20TH NOVEMBER
2009, 09:00 - 12:00

Agenda Item 3

Wirral Children’s Trust

Memorandum of Understanding
June 2009

Page 1

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding

Contents
Foreword
Introduction
Statement of Commitment
Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust
Partnership Principles
Governance and Accountability Arrangements
Decision Making
Challenge Process
Partner Roles and Responsibilities
The Scope of Involvement
The Role of the Director of Children’s Services & Lead Member
The Role of the Local Safeguarding Children Board
Leadership
Commissioning
Performance Management
Locality Working
Information Sharing
Risk Assessment
Equalities and Inclusion
Dispute and Conflict Resolution
Review of the memorandum of understanding
Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust
Wirral Children’s Trust Board
Terms of Reference
Membership
Meeting Arrangements
Wirral Children’s Trust Executive
Terms of Reference
Membership
Meeting Arrangements
Strategy Groups
Terms of Reference
Membership
Meeting Arrangements
District Boards
Terms of Reference
Membership
Meeting Arrangements
Wirral Children’s Trust Support

Page 2

1
1
1
1
2
2
2
3
3
4
4
4
4
5
5
5
5
5
6
6
7
8
8
8
8
9
9
9
9
10
10
10
10
11
11
11
11
12

Foreword
Children and young people are society’s future and with them rest our hopes and aspirations.
Supporting their interest and welfare is paramount. Our most important principle is that we will
secure an active partnership of parents, carers and services, working together to deliver the best
outcomes for all our children and young people and thus enabling them to fulfil their potential.
In the past few years significant and sustained improvements in outcomes for children and young
people have been delivered at all levels in the Wirral partnership. National legislation and self
review of existing arrangements indicate that we need to build on the good foundations and
develop the trust further. Consideration of the governance and organisational arrangements of the
Children’s Trust will ensure the best use is made of public resources for the benefit of children and
young people.
It is our intention that this new structure and governance arrangements provide an effective and
transparent framework and clarity of roles and responsibilities to sustain and improve outcomes for
all our children and young people.

Councillor Phil Davies
Lead Member for Children’s Services

Howard Cooper
Director of Children’s Services

Page 3

Wirral Children’s Trust Memorandum of Understanding
Introduction
Strategic developments and national legislation have required a review of existing governance
arrangements to ensure Wirral’s partnership working for children and young people is fit for
purpose.
The purpose of this document is to outline a new partnership governance structure and how the
new structure and governance arrangements will operate to deliver improved outcomes for Wirral’s
children and young people. There is a requirement for a formal agreement that the Children and
Young People’s Strategic Partnership Board becomes the Children’s Trust Board.

Statement of Commitment
The member organisations of the Children’s Trust (CT) are committed to working together at every
level to improve the quality of life and wellbeing of all children and young people in Wirral.

Aims of Wirral Children’s Trust
“Our vision is to enable Wirral’s children, young people and families to access services quickly in
order to be secure, healthy, have fun and achieve their full potential”
The aim of the CT is to work across professional and agency boundaries to make a difference to
the experience and life chances of children, young people and their families. The trust will agree
priorities and actions for children’s services ensuring safeguarding underpins all activity and
provide a framework for the effective operation of local arrangements. The framework will support
a focus on preventative and early intervention services and ensure service providers understand
what is expected of them. Monitoring of performance will inform future planning and
commissioning, ensuring clear strategic direction and providing value for money.

Partnership Principles
The members agree to work together actively to achieve the aims of the CT, on the basis of:
! visible commitment and ‘ownership’ by the various member organisations and individual
representatives;
! mutual trust and respect;
! openness and transparency;
! effective communication and accountability;
! shared ownership of resources, where appropriate;
! combined expertise;
! creative and innovative solutions to problems;
! identification and sharing of best practice, based on mutual learning;
! removal of barriers to equality of access and opportunity;
! clear purpose, clarity of expectations and agreed targets for action;
! effective decision-making;
! shared mechanisms for risk management, monitoring, evaluation, reviewing and reporting
on performance, progress and success;
! allowing each constituent member unobstructed access to the audit records of the
partnership, on request.

Page 4

Governance & Accountability Arrangements
The governance and accountability arrangements set out in this document put into operation the
duty to cooperate as set out in section 10 of the Children Act 2004.
This applies to all services provided or commissioned by the Trust that support children and young
people’s 0 to 19 and specific groups of young people up to age 25.
The Trust requires each partner agency to retain full responsibility for its statutory duties and
functions at all times and allows for these duties and functions to be carried out through a system
of joint planning and commissioning. This supplements existing organisational arrangements and
provides additional robust accountabilities outside of existing partner agency arrangements.
The Board will take responsibility for setting the strategic direction for services to children, young
people and their families. This includes setting priorities, joint planning and commissioning
decisions; the alignment of resources at strategic level and agreeing service models based on
service performance and agreed service specifications.
The Board will act as the single coordination body for all children’s services planning and
commissioning arrangements and will be the focus for facilitating joint working leading to the
integration of multi agency services for children and young people and their families.
The Board will be responsible and accountable for the performance and commissioning decisions
made by all other planning and commissioning groups in children’s services.
The Board will be accountable to the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board for the actions it takes in
ensuring that all children and young people in Wirral are adequately safeguarded.
The Children’s Trust (CT) assumes all partners accept collective responsibility and accountability
for all decisions made by the Board. However, within this collective responsibility and decisionmaking process it is recognised there are different levels of accountability and risk for individual
agencies and organisations.

Decision Making
Each partner agency accepts collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board. All
decisions will be transparent and informed by open debate, advice, performance reporting and
analysis, best practice, risk assessment and option appraisal.
The Children’s Trust Executive (CTE) the multi-agency Strategy Groups and the District Boards will
be responsible for providing advice to the Board to support the decision-making processes.

Challenge process
In exercising collective responsibility for all decisions made by the Board each partner agency will
be open to challenge and scrutiny through the formal processes of the accountable body (the
Council) and of the other agencies.
Progress on the delivery of the Children and Young Peoples Plan (CYPP) will be performance
managed by the Board and is open to challenge by any interested party.
A formal review of the progress made by the Board will be reported to Wirral Council Cabinet on an
annual basis and on other occasions on request. The annual review will be published.

Page 5

Partner Roles and Responsibilities
!

The Local Authority (Council) is responsible for leading the Trust and the Council in the
improvement of outcomes for all children and young people. In this respect the Council is
the accountable body for the CT. The Council is responsible for the development and
implementation of the CYPP as the single agreement between the partnership on priorities
and actions for children and young people.

!

The Primary Care Trust (PCT) is responsible for ensuring that health provision meets the
identified needs of children, young people and their families on behalf of the CT. The PCT
is responsible for ensuring health provision is aligned to the priorities agreed in the CYPP,
and for the commissioning of health service on behalf of the Partnership.

!

The Police are responsible for ensuring that the Local Policing Plan is consistent with the
Partnership vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

!

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service are responsible for ensuring that their strategic
planning encompasses the Partnership vision and the priorities in the CYPP.

!

Through the Youth Justice Board (YJB) the Youth Offending Service (YOS) is responsible
for the production of the Youth Justice Plan. This plan must be consistent with the
Partnership vision and with the priorities agreed in the CYPP. The Plan should state how
the pooling and alignment of resources will contribute to the improvement of outcomes for
children, young people and their families.

!

The responsible bodies for delivering the roles of information and advice for young people
and Post 16 function (currently the Merseyside Connexions Partnership and Learning and
Skills Council (LSC)) provide and secure services that enable and encourage young people
to participate in education, training and employment. It is the responsibility of these bodies
to provide information on the needs of young people to inform Partnership priorities and
inform commissioning decision-making.

!

The voluntary and community sector have a significant expertise in the delivery of services
and in engaging children and families in identifying needs, innovative service models and
commissioning priorities. The voluntary and community sector representation is responsible
for informing the Partnership on these areas of expertise and for ensuring the sector has a
voice in identifying priorities and actions in the CYPP.

!

Schools and Sixth Form and Further Education Colleges representatives are responsible
for ensuring the sector inform and influence priority setting in the CYPP and advise the
Partnership on engagement with schools in Wirral.

!

Job Centre Plus representatives are responsible for ensuring their organisation inform,
influence and advise the Board.

The Scope of Involvement
The Trust Board will demonstrate clear links to other thematic partnerships through the Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP) to ensure that strategies are not fragmented and that different services
share priorities and thinking. The Trust will “inform and influence” the work of the LSP in regards to
children, young people and families and ensure that these groups are reflected in within the LAA. It
will ensure that the CYPP is consistent with the strategic vision of the Sustainable Community
Strategy.
The views of children and young people are at the centre of strategic planning and service design.
The Trust Board will ensure ongoing high quality consultation with children, young people and their

Page 6

families is undertaken to empower and engage the wider community. Specific consultation will be
carried out during the preparation of the CYPP.

Role of the Director of Children’s Services & Lead Member
The Director of Children’s Services (DCS) is professionally accountable for the delivery across the
Every Child Matters (ECM) five outcome areas for children and young people. The DCS together
with the Lead Member (LM) has a key role in leadership, strategy and effectiveness of services.
Both work to drive forward the development of a dynamic Children’s Trust encompassing
partnership working and to integrate and transform services.
The Lead Member exercises political accountability for the same range of services as the Director
and is expected to ensure there is a clear focus on safeguarding.
Both the DCS and LM therefore have particular and distinct responsibilities as memberships of the
Board. This entitles both the Director and Lead Member to hold other agencies to account for the
joint planning and commissioning of integrated services.

Role of the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board
The Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) will maintain a close working relationship with
the Children’s Trust. The role of the LSCB is to ensure appropriate scrutiny and impartiality and to
take responsibility for challenging every member of the Children’s Trust through the Board on their
success in ensuring that children and young people are kept safe. The LSCB will also support the
Trust to implement recommendations within agreed timescales ensuring improvements are made
in leadership, staffing, training, supervision and practice across all services.
To ensure clarity between the roles and responsibilities between the LSCB and the Children’s
Trust the LSCB will maintain its independence and will have an independent chair. It will have
appropriate representation on the CT Board and ECM Strategy Groups and ensure that
safeguarding is clearly represented and reported in the Children and Young People’s Plan.
Both the DCS and the Lead Member will be members of both the Children’s Trust Board and the
LSCB. The LSCB will report to the CTB and publish an annual report on the effectiveness of
safeguarding in Wirral.

Leadership
Each Board member will act on behalf of their organisation as an ambassador for children services
locally, regionally and nationally. Board members will take responsibility for ensuring the agreed
actions are carried out and their agency/sector is fully informed about the work of the CT and
engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.

Commissioning
The Board, supported by joint commissioners, will be responsible for the identification of need and
the setting of priorities to support the development of integrated multi agency services for all
children, young people and their families. Commissioners will ensure there is a comprehensive up
to date analysis of children and young people’s needs upon which informed decisions on the
design and commissioning of services can be based. They will coordinate the implementation of
the partnerships preventative framework by identifying shifts in activity and resource allocation that
will enable the development of planned targeted interventions.

Page 7

All planning and commissioning decision making will be informed by:
! Needs analysis
! Prevention priorities
! Performance
! Risk analysis
The Board will carry out an annual review of commissioning and evaluate how outcomes and
services have been improved through the alignment and pooling of resources and jointly agreed
priorities.

Performance Management
Each member of the Board will take full responsibility and accountability for the delivery of the five
ECM outcomes. The specific responsibility for the performance management of the ECM
outcomes will be held by the Children’s Trust Executive (CTE).
The Board will review progress in achieving improved outcomes for all children on a regular basis.
Management information reports will inform the Board of the progress being made in achieving the
key targets set out in the CYPP, Local Area Agreement (LAA), National Indicator (NI) set and
relevant areas of Wirral Council’s Corporate Plan.

Locality Working
In ensuring that joint planning and commissioning priorities are relevant to the diverse communities
in Wirral, the Board has established District Boards. These groups are accountable to the CTB.

Information Sharing
The Board will ensure that information sharing protocols are designed to enable intelligence
gathering for effective needs analysis to be carried out on a continuous basis. Information sharing
arrangements will also be developed to ensure the effective implementation of ContactPoint and
the common assessment framework (CAF).

Risk Assessment
On an annual basis the Board will undertake a formal risk assessment process in order to identify:
! The effectiveness of the Board’s work.
! The impact the partnership is having on outcomes for children and young people.

Equalities and Inclusion
The Children’s Trust will operate on the basis of principles that actively value the benefits of
diversity and ensure fair treatment and equality of opportunity. This includes representation and
participation on the partnership.
On an annual basis the Board will undertake an equality impact assessment on the CT functions,
policies and services.

Page 8

Dispute and Conflict Resolution
Members of the partnership:
! Must not use their position improperly, confer on, or secure for themselves or any other person,
an advantage or disadvantage.
! Must ensure that activities are not undertaken for political purposes
! Must not unduly influence any person in the paid employment of any of the partner agencies.
Issues of conflict within the partnership will be resolved initially by informal discussion. If this is not
successful the issue will be referred to the Chief Executive of each agency who will meet to
attempt to resolve the issue. If the issue is still not resolved appropriate alternative dispute
resolution (ADR) will be considered.

Review of the Memorandum of Understanding
This memorandum of understanding will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Page 9

The Structure of Wirral Children’s Trust

Local Strategic Partnership

Partner Agency
Decision Making
(Cabinet, PCT
Board)

Local
Safeguarding
Children Board

Wirral Children’s
Trust Board

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive

Strategy Groups:
Be Healthy; Stay Safe;
Enjoy & Achieve;
Positive Contribution;
Social and Economic
Well Being; LAC; LDD

Children and
Young People’s
Participation

Children and
Young
People’s Plan

Joint
Commissioning

Children’s Workforce
Development &
Integrated Working

District Boards

Page 10

Wirral Children’s Trust Board
Terms of Reference
Each Board member will act as an ambassador for children services locally, regionally and
nationally.
Board members will:
! Co-ordinate services for children and young people.
! Oversee the preparation, agreement, monitoring and review of the Children and Young
People’s Plan to meet both statutory requirements and meeting local need.
! Ensure that children, young people and their families and carers are able to contribute
effectively to the design and delivery of services for them.
! Determine the integrated strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s wellbeing with robust performance monitoring with regard to outcomes and impact.
! Agree joint commissioning strategies and be responsible for pooled budget arrangements.
! Create a shared culture and vision amongst partners.
! Identify and celebrate best practice.
! Ensure that there is appropriate challenge where partnership working becomes ineffective.
! Ensure that their agency/sector is fully informed about the work of the Board and engaged
in the delivery of the CYPP.
! Oversee the arrangement for the sharing of information about children and young people
(ContactPoint).
! Maintain a strategic link to the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board.
! Demonstrate involvement in the Sustainable Community Strategy and clear links to other
thematic partnerships through the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP).
! Monitor progress on the Children and Young People’s block in the Local Area Agreement.
! Oversee inspection arrangements and support agencies to meet the requirements of the
Comprehensive Area Assessment.

Membership
Chair:
Deputy:

Lead Member for Children’s Services
To be appointed by the board

All partners under a statutory duty to cooperate will be represented and other persons or bodies
the CT board consider appropriate. Attendees to be nominated by their constituent body.
The membership will include representatives from the following:
! Elected members
! Wirral Council
! Wirral National Health Service organisations
! Merseyside Police
! Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service
! Job Centre Plus
! The Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
! Primary and Secondary (including Special) Schools, Sixth Form and FE Colleges and School
Forum representatives
The membership will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Meeting Arrangements
The Children’s Trust Board will meet bi-monthly.

Page 11

Wirral Children’s Trust Executive
The CTE will operate as an executive of the Children’s Trust Board (CTB). Whilst the strategic
leadership, accountability and agreement reside with the CTB, the CTE works to support the Board
through a process of delegated and devolved decision making powers. All proposals concerning
key strategic developments will go to the CTB for final approval.

Terms of Reference
Board members will take responsibility for:
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Delivering the identified needs of Wirral children and young people in terms of the five
outcomes in the Children Act 2004.
Developing the strategies required to improve the outcomes for children’s well-being.
The preparation and annual review of the Children and Young People’s Plan
Identifying best practice and proposing joint commissioning of services and identifying
shared resources.
Annual review of joint commissioning arrangements
Implementing service improvement priorities.
Establishing the evidence base behind development proposals.
Ensuring that agreed actions are carried out.
Ensuring that the cross agency strategy groups are fully informed about the work of the
CTB and are engaged in the delivery of the CYPP.
Disseminating a shared culture and vision amongst partners in the working groups.
Preparation for the strategic engagement cycle and priority meetings with GONW and
DCSF.
Performance management including the Local Area Agreement.
Preparing for and evaluating practice to inform the inspection arrangements including the
Comprehensive Area Assessment.

Membership
Chair:
Deputy:

Director of Children’s Services
To be nominated by the Executive

The membership includes the Strategy Lead for each multi-agency strategy group and invited
representatives.

Meeting Arrangements
The CTE will meet bi-monthly.

Page 12

Strategy Groups
The multi-agency strategy groups (SG) are linked to the five ECM outcome areas for children and
young people. They own the CYPP and are responsible for its delivery. They are accountable to
the CTB and the CTE.

Terms of Reference
The Strategy Groups are responsible for:
!

!
!
!
!
!

The monitoring and reporting on progress. Issues regarding their respective National
Indicators, LAA targets, CYPP priorities, allocated tasks groups and any other locally based
targets agreed by the partnership.
Receive information from and respond to requests from other groups and stakeholders.
Make quarterly performance progress reports highlighting areas of poor performance,
issues and risk.
Develop opportunities for multi-agency involvement and networking to share best practice
Provide support and information to other groups within the Trust.
Maintain effective arrangements to consult with children, young people, families and carers,
act on the results of the consultation and provide feedback.

Membership
Chair: Outcome area Strategy Lead
Multi-agency representation related to each outcome area, including family representation.

Meeting Arrangements
To be agreed by each group.

Page 13

District Boards
The District Boards chaired by an elected member, provide the opportunity for those with an
operational responsibility for providing services to children and young people to co-ordinate activity
and ensure integrated working in a district. The boards operate as networks for existing groups and
services supported by the District Manager who will feed information into the appropriate Strategy
Group as necessary. The District Mangers will support local networks via a range of engagement
methods such as a formal District Board Meeting, linking into established groups across schools
and GP surgeries and running workshops to ensure an appropriate response to local need. The
networks will also develop working links with the Council’s Area Forums and Area Youth Forums
and their membership. These networks are a conduit for providing a front line perspective in
relation to the impact and success of the implementation of Children’s Trust arrangements.
Terms of Reference
The District Boards are responsible for:
! Local needs analysis.
! The identification of priorities, which will contribute to the delivery of statutory requirements
priorities as set out in the CYPP and local priorities where these are relevant.
! The monitoring and review of performance of the delivery of agreed priorities.
! The development of local preventative services.
! The coordination of the integration and deployment of preventative services in each locality.
! The promotion of collaborative partnership working at a local level.
! Ensuring that children, young people and their families are involved in informing all decisionmaking.
! To coordinate the participation of children, young people and their families in priority setting
and service development.
Membership
Chair: Appointed Councillor
Councillor from each Area Forum.
Youth Forum representative.
Extended School Cluster Lead.
District Manager.
Senior Social Care Manager.
Children and Young People’s Department Head of Branch.
Senior representative from each partner agency.

Meeting Arrangements
The District Boards meet bi-monthly.

Page 14

Wirral Children’s Trust Support
The Children’s Services Department Planning and Resources Branch will provide the following key
functions to the CTB, CTE and the District Boards:
!
!
!
!
!
!

Agenda.
Minutes.
Performance management reporting arrangements.
Risk management arrangements.
Seek appropriate contributions from partners to support the CT governance framework.
If required send representation to advise groups in terms of processes relating to
governance reporting and standard agenda items.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16

Agenda Item 4

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11th SEPTEMBER 2009
APPRENTICESHIPS, SKILLS, CHILDREN AND LEARNING BILL AND WIRRAL
CHILDREN’S TRUST

Introduction
The Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Bill is passing through Parliament. This
briefing outlines the implications for the Children’s Trust Board and relevant partners.
Arrangements include children and relevant young people. Children are defined as a
person under the age of 18 and ‘relevant young persons’ includes people aged 18 and 19,
care-leavers over the age of 19, and people over the age of 19 but under the age of 25
who have a learning difficulty within the meaning of section 13 of the Learning and Skills
Act 2000 who are receiving services under that ACT.

The Bill Part 9 - Children’s Services
Clause 184: Arrangements to promote co-operation
Relevant Partners
Section 10 of the Children Act 2004 is amended to include new relevant partners who
must co-operate with the LA.
New relevant partners will include:
! Schools, FE institutions, non-maintained special schools, city technology colleges,
city colleges and academies
! JobCentre Plus
The extension of this duty to co-operate to these new partners is to give them a stronger
voice within the arrangements to improve children’s well being, greater influence over the
local strategic direction taken, and better support from other partners.
The Children’s Trust Board (CTB) may also include other persons or bodies that the LA
thinks appropriate. One or more people are allowed to represent more than one CTB
member or a group of CTB members.
Relevant partners can provide staff and other resources to each other and other relevant
partners of another local authority.
The new arrangements allow relevant partners more flexibility over how they share
resources and pool funds through the option to operate one fund.

Clause 185: Children’s Trust Boards
LAs are required to set up Children’s Trust Boards as part of the arrangements to improve
children’s well being.
CTB are required to have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State relating to
CTB procedures and the exercise of their functions.

Page 17

CTB activities may be inspected under an inspection of children’s services.
Two or more CTBs are allowed to pool funds for the purposes of their work.
A person or body represented on a Children’s Trust Board must supply any information
requested by the board for the purpose of enabling or assisting it to perform its functions.
The funding of CTBs, the supply of information to CTB and the need to have regard to the
CYPP when exercising it’s functions are added to the list of relevant functions of a LA. This
allows the Secretary of State to intervene in LAs in connection with their CTB and CYPP
activities.
Children and Young People’s Plans
The duty of preparing and implementing Children and Young People’s Plans (CYPP) is
transferred from LAs to the CTB.
The CTB must adhere to government regulations in the preparation and publishing of
CYPP. The CYPP will continue to be the single strategic overarching plan for all local
services for children and young people.
All partners are under a duty to have regard to their local CYPP when exercising their
functions. This includes maintained schools not represented on the CTB.
The CTB will monitor partners’ progress in implementing the CYPP and report annually on
how well CTB partners are acting in accordance with the strategies set out in the CYPP.
The new functions relating to CTB and CYPPs are added to the list of functions of a
Director of Children’s Services.
Schools forums have a duty to have regard to the CYPP produced by their local CTB.

Summary
The changes outlined in the Bill are reflected in Wirral Children’s Trust new memorandum.
Strengthening the structure and governance of the Trust provides the foundation to enable
clause 185 to be achieved and to drive forward the sharing of resources outlined in the Bill
to improve outcomes for the Children and Young People of Wirral.

RECOMMENATIONS:
1. That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.
2. That the contents of the new Bill are cascaded to partner organisations.

Report Author: Nancy Clarkson

Contact: 0151 6664329

Page 18

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11TH SEPTEMBER 2009
ContactPoint – Update on Progress

Introduction
ContactPoint is being developed as part of the Every Child Matters programme to improve
outcomes for all children. It will be a vital support for delivering early intervention for
children who need additional services and effective safeguarding for children at risk of
harm.
The aims of ContactPoint are to:
!

Help practitioners quickly identify a child with whom they have contact, and
whether that child is getting the universal services (education, primary
healthcare) to which he or she is entitled;

!

Enable earlier identification of needs and earlier and more effective action to
address these needs by providing a tool for practitioners to identify who else is
involved with a particular child; and

!

Be an important tool to encourage and support better communication and closer
working between different professionals and practitioners.

ContactPoint and Information Sharing
Many of the national reports that have looked into failures to protect children have
highlighted the lack of information sharing as a key concern. ContactPoint will be a tool to
facilitate coordination and discussion between children’s services, where this is
appropriate.
ContactPoint isn’t just about child protection, it is principally about supporting early
intervention for the 50% of children who at some point in their lives need additional
services to ensure they achieve good outcomes.
ContactPoint does not change any rules governing confidentiality or sharing information
when practitioners discuss a child’s needs. Everyone who works with children and young
people must still ensure that they follow established guidelines on information sharing and
exercise professional judgement.
ContactPoint will contain only the following basic information:
!

name, address, gender and date of birth of child and an identifying number for all
children in England up to their 18th birthday;

!

name and contact details for:
! parents or carers;
! educational setting (e.g. school);
! primary medical practitioner (e.g. GP practice); and
! practitioners providing other relevant services.

Page 19

!

There will be a facility to indicate if a practitioner is a lead professional for a child and/or
if they have completed an assessment under the Common Assessment Framework
(the assessment itself will not be accessible from ContactPoint).

!

The Children Act 2004 specifically prohibits the inclusion of any case information.
ContactPoint will not record information such as case notes, assessments, medical
records or school attainment. There will be no subjective opinions or observations
about a child or parent, and no automatic triggers for action or investigation.

!

Explicit consent will be required from the child (or where they have insufficient
understanding, their parent/carer) to record contact details for sensitive services
(defined as sexual/mental health and substance abuse). Where practitioner contact
details are recorded, only an indication of an unspecified service would be visible to the
majority of users.

!

With consent, 18-19 years olds who are receiving Connexions services and 18-25 year
olds who are care leavers or have learning difficulties may also remain on
ContactPoint, to facilitate the transition to adult services.

!

When a child turns 18 (or up to 25 where appropriate) their record will be removed from
ContactPoint. It will be held in a secure archive for 6 years and then destroyed. Access
to the archive will be strictly limited.

!

Records of children whose circumstances may mean that they are at increased risk of
harm may have some of their details hidden (or shielded). These decisions will be
taken on a case by case basis and will be based on the level of threat posed if their
information becomes more widely available. This is not unique to ContactPoint; it is
already in place in a number of systems and is entirely consistent with Data Protection
legislation.

The Legal Framework
Section 12 of the Children Act 2004 provides the legislative basis for establishing
ContactPoint. The primary purpose of ContactPoint is to support those practitioners
working in children’s services who are under the duties specified in Section 10 and Section
11 of the Children Act 2004 - the duty to cooperate to improve well-being, and the duty to
safeguard and promote welfare of all children in England. The Regulations – officially
known as The Children Act 2004 Information Database (England) Regulations 2007- came
into force on 1 August 2007.

Access to ContactPoint
The Wirral ContactPoint team is now in place and has been accredited by the DCSF. The
team are currently accessing ContactPoint and performing data cleansing tasks in
preparation to rolling out the system to practitioners in early 2010.
Before practitioners can be trained, they must meet ECRB / Independent Safeguarding
Authority requirements and their employing organisation must be ‘organisationally
accredited’. The Children and Young People’s Department is on track to be the first
‘internal’ partner accredited, this is due to be completed by late September / early October.
Work is well underway with health colleagues and one of the main health organisations
should become the first ‘external’ partner to be accredited shortly after this.

Page 20

The next stage will see the accreditation process extending to schools, GP Practices, the
third sector, as well as cross border agencies.
It is anticipated that training could take up to two years to complete.

Data Supply to ContactPoint
ContactPoint currently holds data from the national data suppliers, General Records
Office, NHS, DWP and DCSF for example. However local data from case management
systems based in each local authority will also begin to supply data to the system during
2010.
Wirral is currently commissioning a ‘ContactPoint Adapter’ that will be able to
accept information from any system and transform it to match ContactPoint’s
requirements, before submitting it to the national system. This work is in the early stages
and progress reports will be supplied as the work progresses.
In addition to the ‘adapter’ the main case management systems will also be directly
connected to ContactPoint. This work is also progressing, although at this stage work is
being undertaken by the system suppliers and DCSF.

Summary
Organisational accreditation is currently the main focus of activity for all partners, running
concurrently with this activity is the identification of the practitioners that will require access
and the priority order for training. Local data supply will become a critically important
feature of work in late 2009 early 2010.
In summary ContactPoint is currently on track for practitioner access to begin in 2010.

RECOMMENATIONS:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Report Author: Mark Ellis

Contact: 666 6567

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11TH SEPTEMBER 2009
Report from the LSCB on local arrangements and Ofsted evaluation of Wirral
Serious Case Reviews

Introduction
This report informs the Children’s Trust Board of key arrangements in place locally to
further promote and safeguard children’s welfare following the national review of
safeguarding by the Government following the Serious Case Review (baby Peter) into
Haringey Local Safeguarding Board, the Local Authority and other key partner agencies
involved.

Report on Local Safeguarding Arrangements
Following the Serious Case Review in Haringey and the Government’s response through
the publication of ‘The Protection of children in England: action plan (2009), Wirral Local
Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) have conducted and overseen the following action:
!

!

!

!

!

A rapid appraisal of all children subject to a child protection plan by District
Managers which included an analysis of social work visits and actions outstanding
on the plan.
A small sample of children were seen and spoken with about their view of
safeguarding arrangements for themselves, as well as their carers who were asked
about their knowledge and involvement in plan.
PCT and Acute Trust produced a written report to the LSCB on health action on
child protection plans and their own compliance with planned action .Further to this
the NHS partnership has undertaken a review of their safeguarding arrangements
following the Quality Care Commissions national review and will report to the LSCB
in September. This review will include the capacity of the Trust to support the work
of the LSCB and its sub-committees.
Merseyside Police with the 5 LSCB’s undertook an audit of 66 randomly samples
cases across Merseyside that had been referred by police operational staff. A full
report and Executive summary was produced with an associated Action Plan for a
Learning Together Partnership day in June 2009. Each LSCB will report to the
Governance Group, chaired by Assistant Chief Constable and consisting of the
DCS’s, on their respective action.
Independent chairing of the LSCB- was a recommendation from Lord Lamings
report ‘The Protection of Children in England – a Progress Report ‘. Wirral LSCB
agreed to tender for an independent chair and an appropriate level of funding was
agreed by the Board in June 2009. Interviews will be held in October for this
position.

Page 23

Serious Case Reviews
Ofsted evaluate all SCR’s under the new arrangements and Wirral LSCB have had two
evaluations thus far. JLS – completed in November 2008 was judged to be ‘good’.
Evaluations range from inadequate to outstanding. The Social Care report was judged to
be outstanding. The second, AP – was evaluated as adequate, with the health reports
being judged as good. A Third SCR is being conducted on a child who died in April , CF,
and will be completed in October 2009. As there are parallel criminal proceedings due to
be completed in October it is likely there will be a delay in publishing the Executive
Summary for this SCR. Executive Summaries are a requirement and are placed on the
LSCB website as public documents. The Government have produced, through the DCSF,
a re-draft of Chapter 8 – Serious Case Reviews, for consultation with the full revision
expected to be regulated for in December when the full revision of Working Together is
complete. This will include SCR chairs also being independent of the LSCB but
commissioned and financed by the Board.

RECOMMENATIONS:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Report Author:
Contact: 0151 666 5576
Caroline Mckenna
Strategic Service Manager - Safeguarding

Page 24

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Year End - 2008/09
Quarter 1 - 2009/10

2008/09 A Snapshot of Wirral.......................................................................................................... 1
Wirral Performance and Targets 2008/9 ......................................................................................... 2
Wirral Performance Year End 2008/9 – Exceptions ...................................................................... 11
Wirral Performance Quarter 1 2009/10 - Exceptions..................................................................... 13
Benchmarking Profile .................................................................................................................... 16

Contents

Wirral Children's Trust – Performance Report

Agenda Item 8

Page 25

1. 2008/09 A Snapshot of Wirral

Population of children 0 – 17 16624
% Key Stage 2 L4+ inc Eng & Ma 83
% 5+ GCSEs at A*-C inc Eng & Ma 65.3
Permanent School Exclusions per 10,000 2
% Eligible for Free School Meals 12.3
Pregnancies in under 18s per 10,000 23
Children In Need per 10,000 280
Children with Protection plan per 10,000 35
Children in care per 10,000 28

Wirral West

Population of children 0 – 17 (2006) 68305
% of pupils attaining L4+ inc Eng & Ma at Key Stage 2 (2008)
in schools maintained by Wirral 75
% of pupils attaining 5+ GCSEs at grade A*-C inc Eng & Ma
(2008) in schools maintained by Wirral 50.2
Permanent school exclusions (2007/08) per 10,000 5
% Eligible for Free school meals from January 2008 Census
(excluding part time pupils) 24.3
Pregnancies in under 18 year olds (2007) per 10,000 33
Children In Need (2008/2009) per 10,000 583
Children with a Child Protection Plan (2008/09) per 10,000 56
Children in care (2008/09) per 10,000 91

Wirral

Page 26

1

Population of children 0 – 17 11973
% Key Stage 2 L4+ inc Eng & Ma 75.6
% 5+ GCSEs at A*-C inc Eng & Ma 59.6
Permanent School Exclusions per 10,000 7
% Eligible for Free School Meals 14.5
Pregnancies in under 18s per 10,000 18
Children In Need per 10,000 307
Children with Protection plan per 10,000 22
Children in care per 10,000 35

Wirral South

Population of children 0 – 17 19784
% Key Stage 2 L4+ inc Eng & Ma 68.9
% 5+ GCSEs at A*-C inc Eng & Ma 38.2
Permanent School Exclusions per 10,000 9
% Eligible for Free School Meals 38.5
Pregnancies in under 18s per 10,000 49
Children In Need per 10,000 985
Children with Protection plan per 10,000 96
Children in care per 10,000 173

Birkenhead

Population of children 0 – 17 19924
% Key Stage 2 L4+ inc Eng & Ma 73.8
% 5+ GCSEs at A*-C inc Eng & Ma 41.9
Permanent School Exclusions per 10,000 4
% Eligible for Free School Meals 27.2
Pregnancies in under 18s per 10,000 36
Children In Need per 10,000 604
Children with Protection plan per 10,000 54
Children in care per 10,000 80

Wallasey

Page 27
79.2%

98.5%
N/A
15

N/A

N/A

N/A

98.0%
N/A
15

N/A

N/A

N/A

NI 46 - Young Offenders' access to suitable accommodation

NI 50 - Emotional Health of Children

NI 51 - Effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health
(CAMHS) services

NI 52 - Take up of school lunches

NI 53 - Prevalence of breast feeding

NI 54 - Services for disabled children

0.31

69.9%

-1.0

NI 44 - Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice
System disposals

3.8%

2007/8

Actual

NI 45 - Young offenders' engagement in suitable education
training and employment

4.8%

2006/07

NI 43 - Young people within the Youth Justice System
receiving a conviction in court who are sentenced to custody

National Indicator

2. Wirral Performance and Targets 2008/9

N/A

29.0%

N/A

15

62.7%

98.2%

82.0%

-0.28

4.0%

2008/9

N/A

N/A

Baseline
in
2009/10

N/A

Baseline
in
2009/10
29.9%

16

N/A

100.0%

90.0%

0.0

< 5.0%

2010/11

16

N/A

100.0%

90.0%

0.0

< 5.0%

2009/10

Targets

N/A

N/A

N/A

16

N/A

100.0%

90.0%

0.0

< 5.0%

2011/12

2

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Good
Performance

Page 28

9.13%

19.74%

62.2%
3.0%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

81.6%

82.4%

76.2%

9.8%

62.3%
7.7%

NI 55 - Obesity in primary school age children in Reception

NI 56 - Obesity in primary school age children in Year 6

NI 57 - Children and young people’s participation in highquality PE and sport.

NI 58 - Emotional and behavioural health of looked after
children

NI 59 - Percentage of initial assessments for children's social
care carried out within 7 working days of referral

NI 60 - Percentage of core assessments for children's social
care that were carried out within 35 working days of their
commencement.

NI 61 - Timeliness of placements of looked after children for
adoption following an agency decision that the child should be
placed for adoption

NI 62 - Stability of placements of looked after children: number
of placements

NI 63 - Stability of placements of looked after children: length
of placement

NI 64 Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years or more

12.0%

55.6%

90.0%

79.0%

N/A

N/A

2007/8

Actual
2006/07

National Indicator

4.8%

65.5%

10.2%

64.7%

79.1%

77.4%

15.3

N/A

19.11%

9.57%

2008/9

< 5.0%

63.0%

10.0%

68%

82.0%

82.0%

< 5.0%

63.0%

10.0%

68%

84.0%

84.0%

N/A

N/A

Baseline
in
2009/10
N/A

20.9%

9.37%

2010/11

20.4%

9.23%

2009/10

Targets

< 5.0%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

9.50%

2011/12

3

Lower is better

Higher is Better

Add range here

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Good
Performance

Page 29
N/A

N/A

45%

72%

NI 71 - Children who have run away from home/care

NI 72 - Achievement of at least 78 points across the Early
Years Foundation Stage

NI 73 - Achievement at level 4 or above in both English and
Maths at Key Stage 2

72%

46%

159.6

N/A

66.0%

161.1

40.50%

NI 68 Referrals to children's social care going on to initial
assessment

100%

NI 70 Reduce emergency hospital admissions caused by
unintentional and deliberate injuries to children and young
people

100%

NI 67 Percentage of child protection cases which were
reviewed within required timescales

95.0%

N/A

89.8%

NI 66 - Looked after children cases which were reviewed within
required timescales

14.5%

2007/8

Actual

NI 69 - Children who have experienced bullying

10.0%

2006/07

NI 65 Percentage of children becoming the subject of Child
Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time

National Indicator

75%

49%

N/A

123.7

42.2%

64.3%

99%

96.3%

11.2%

2008/9

78%

TBC

TBC

N/A

Baseline
in
2009/10
56%

N/A

N/A

75%

100%

100%

N/A

2010/11

N/A

N/A

72%

100%

100%

N/A

2009/10

Targets

TBC

TBC

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

100%

100%

N/A

2011/12

4

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is better

Higher is better

Higher is better

Lower is better

Good
Performance

Page 30
32.4%

50.8%

50.8%

NI 081 - Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3
qualification by the age of 19

NI 082 - Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 2
qualification by the age of 19

NI 084 - Achievement of 2 or more A*- C grades in Science
GCSEs or equivalent

54.5%

51.0%

33.1%

43.9%

44.4%

NI 080 - Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19

6

70.8%

6

NI 78 - Reduction in number of schools where fewer than 30%
of pupils achieve 5 or more A*- C grades at GCSE and
equivalent including GCSEs in English and Maths

11

69.2%

16

NI 76 - Reduction in number of schools where fewer than 65%
of pupils achieve level 4 or above in both English and Maths
at KS2

48.4%

2007/8

Actual

NI 079 - Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of
19

46.3%

2006/07

NI 75 - Achievement of 5 or more A*- C grades at GCSE or
equivalent including English and Maths

National Indicator

53.4%

59.5%

32.8%

48.0%

74.0%

4

8

50.2%

2008/9

58.7%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

0

16

55.2%

2009/10

60.6%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

0

TBC

TBC

2010/11

Targets

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

0

TBC

TBC

2011/12

5

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Good
Performance

Page 31
N/A

N/A

NI 88 - Percentage of schools providing access to extended
services

NI 089a - Reduction of number of schools judged as requiring
special measures and improvement in time taken to come out
of the category - Number of schools in special measures

N/A

N/A

7.1%

8.0%

NI 087 - Secondary school persistent absence rate

N/A

86%

N/A

NI 085c - Post-16 participation in physical sciences (A Level
Physics Chemistry and Maths) - A Level Maths

N/A

82%

N/A

NI 085b - Post-16 participation in physical sciences (A Level
Physics Chemistry and Maths) - A Level Chemistry

N/A

2007/8

Actual

NI 086 - Secondary schools judged as having good or
outstanding standards of behaviour

N/A

2006/07

NI 085a - Post-16 participation in physical sciences (A Level
Physics Chemistry and Maths) - A Level Physics

National Indicator

0

65.9%

4.9%

86%

276

246

128

2008/9

0

85.3%

6.4%

N/A

290

258

134

2009/10

0

N/A

5.5%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2010/11

Targets

0

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2011/12

6

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Good
Performance

Page 32
80.5%

73.7%

36%

36%

NI 093 - Progression by 2 levels in English between Key Stage
1 and Key Stage 2

NI 094 - Progression by 2 levels in Maths between Key Stage 1
and Key Stage 2

NI 099 - Looked after children reaching level 4 in English at
Key Stage 2

NI 100 - Looked after children reaching level 4 in mathematics
at Key Stage 2

52%

41%

74.8%

83.8%

34.3%

78.9%

76.2%

NI 091 - Participation of 17 year-olds in education or training

37.4%

N/A

N/A

NI 90 - Uptake of learning diploma

NI 092 - Narrowing the gap between the lowest achieving 20%
in the Early Years Foundation Stage Profile and the rest

N/A

2007/8

N/A

2006/07

Actual

NI 089b - Reduction of number of schools judged as requiring
special measures and improvement in time taken to come out
of the category - Average time in Special Measures

National Indicator

62%

62%

78.9%

85.4%

31.9%

79.0%

N/A

23.7

2008/9

44%

44%

79.0%

86.0%

30.2%

56%

53%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Baseline
in
2009/10
N/A

N/A

2010/11

N/A

2009/10

Targets

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2011/12

7

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Good
Performance

Page 33
N/A
N/A

38.4%

N/A
N/A

56%

43.7%

NI 102b - Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free
school meals and their peers achieving the expected level at
Key Stages 2 and 4 - Key Stage 4 Gap

103a - Statements issued within 26 weeks excluding
exceptions

103b - Statements issued within 26 weeks

NI 104 - The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap achieving Key Stage 2 English and Maths threshold

NI 105 - The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap achieving 5 A*- C GCSE including English and Maths

44.1%

56%

36.5%

23.0%

25.0%

NI 102a - Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free
school meals and their peers achieving the expected level at
Key Stages 2 and 4 - Key Stage 2 Gap

7.9%

2007/8

N/A

2006/07

Actual

NI 101 - Looked after children achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs (or
equivalent) at Key Stage 4 (including English and
mathematics)

National Indicator

46.4%

51.2%

90.7%

97.1%

37.4%

21.8%

10.5%

2008/9

42.0%

52.0%

92.0%

98.0%

35.8%

21.0%

7.4%

2009/10

41.0%

50.0%

94.0%

100.0%

N/A

N/A

6.3%

2010/11

Targets

40.0%

49.0%

96.0%

100.0%

N/A

N/A

N/A

2011/12

8

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Higher is Better

Good
Performance

Page 34

N/A
N/A
1600

-6.7%

17.0%

0.10%
N/A
N/A

N/A
91.1%

N/A
N/A
N/A

-5.60%

N/A

0.10%
N/A
N/A

10.0%

19.4
80.5%

NI 109 - Delivery of Sure Start Children’s Centres

NI 110 - Positive activities for young people

NI 111 - First time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged
10-17

NI 112 - Percentage reduction in under 18 conception rate

NI 113 - Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 25 year olds Testing of Chlamydia in under 25 year olds

NI 114 - Rate of permanent exclusion from school

NI 115 - Substance misuse by young people

NI 116 - Proportion of children in poverty

NI 117 - 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education training or
employment (NEET)

NI 118 - Take up of formal childcare by low-income working
families

NI 147 - Care leavers in suitable accommodation

9.5%

31.1%

2007/8

29.5%

2006/07

Actual

NI 106 - Young people from low income backgrounds
progressing to higher education

National Indicator

91.40%

N/A

9.1%

N/A

13.5%

0.08%

17.0%

N/A

N/A

71.10%

100.0%

N/A

2008/9

95.0%

N/A

7.1%

N/A

N/A

0.07%

17.0%

-28%

1570

N/A

100.0%

N/A

2009/10

96.0%

N/A

6.9%

N/A

N/A

0.07%

17.0%

-39%

1500

N/A

100.0%

N/A

2010/11

Targets

97.0%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

-50%

N/A

N/A

100.0%

N/A

2011/12

9

Higher is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is Better

Lower is better

Lower is Better

Lower is better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Good
Performance

Page 35

40.0%

56.1%

N/A

N/A

NI 148 - Care leavers in education employment or training

NI 161 - Number of Level 1 qualifications in literacy (including
ESOL) achieved

NI 162 - Number of Entry Level qualifications in numeracy
achieved
172

1345

2007/8

Actual
2006/07

National Indicator

240

1767

55.2%

2008/9

N/A

N/A

N/A

2009/10

N/A

N/A

N/A

2010/11

Targets

N/A

N/A

N/A

2011/12

10

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Higher is Better

Good
Performance

Page 36

Looked after children achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs (or
equivalent) at Key Stage 4 (including English and
maths)

101

Children’s
Services
and
Lifelong
Learning

13.5%

2008/09
Target
10.5%

2008/09
Actual
Improved

Direction of travel

PI no

Title

2008/09
Target

2008/09
Actual

Direction of travel

An elected member’s teenage pregnancy briefing is due to be held on the 21st April with support from GONW and the Regional
Teenage Pregnancy Coordinator.

Since the previous update an Information Sharing Agreement has been established between the LA and NHS Wirral. Two data
workshops have been facilitated by Centre for Local Economic Strategies which has provided a number of actions to be progressed
through the Performance Management Group to further strengthen the analysis and use of local data.

Children’s 112
Under 18 conception rate
36.3%
47.64%
Same
Services
and
Lifelong
Learning
Corrective action: Progress towards delivering the Priority Action Plan will depend on the partner's commitment to implementing the
initiatives and overcoming barriers to communication.

Portfolio

Corrective action: The attainment of looked-after children is examined on an individual basis and various factors that might affect
performance are taken into account, such as level of attendance. Designated teachers for Looked After Children are in place. Schools
have been given an additional £500 per pupil through their budgets to assist in work to support Looked After Children.

Context: The cohort of children in care is small and ever changing. Children in this group are amongst the most vulnerable and often
have special educational needs. Historically children in care in Wirral out perform those nationally. Provisional local data, (DCSF do not
release data for this indicator until next year).

Title

PI no

Portfolio

The following indicators have not met the 2008/09 targets by more than 10% and are therefore assessed as red:

3. Wirral Performance Year End 2008/9 – Exceptions

11

Page 37

16 to 18 year olds who are not in education,
employment or training (NEET)

117

Children’s
Services
and
Lifelong
Learning

7.4%

2008/09
Target
9.1%

2008/09
Actual
Improved

Direction of travel

Corrective action: The end of year performance was achieved against a back drop of significant economic downturn. There was a
significant reduction in the number of vacancies for young people in the borough. Focused Activity with the NEET cohort during
December led to a return for that month of 8.49%, a 5 year low for NEET in the Borough. Partnership activities are required to sustain
this effort as outlined in the Borough EET strategy. The Authority EET Action plan is in place which outlines partner responsibilities and
contributions to achieving the NEET target. The Wirral Wise Programme, supported by ESF, has commenced, with its 3 strands of
interventions targeted at young people who are NEET, aimed at progression via placements and work trials. The September Guarantee
thresholds have been met in Wirral this year, with: 94.95% of Year 11 and 80.51% of 17 year olds having a recorded offer of a place in
EET. Targeted action with vulnerable young people and within NEET hotspot areas continues. An Apprenticeship Programme is planned
to be in place for September 2009, targeted at stimulating demand among employers for 100 new apprenticeships. Wirral’s 14-19 offer is
in place, providing a rich menu for students including: Diplomas, foundation Learning Tier, General Qualifications and Apprenticeships.
The student offer will be enhanced by access to impartial Information Advice Guidance and Support. All year 11 leavers and those
leaving one year post 16 programmes of study have the offer of a guarantee of a place in Learning. This offer is supported by the
electronic prospectus ‘Ichoosewirral.org.uk’ detailing post 16 opportunities and the common application process.

Title

PI no

Portfolio

Additional funding has been made available to offer each Secondary School a Bite Size Brook event.

A Media and Communications Plan is currently being developed for Wirral along with a targeted Aspiration Campaign using social
marketing techniques due to be launched in September 2009.

12

Page 38

NI
43

Children’s Services &
Lifelong Learning

Young people within the YJS receiving a conviction in court
who are sentenced to custody

Title
Amber

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target

5.0%
5.3%
Lower=Better (P)

2009/2010
Q1 Target

Deteriorated

Direction
of travel

NI
59

PI no

Percentage of initial assessments for children's social care
carried out within 7 working days of referral

Title
80%

2009/2010
Q1 Target

65.2%
(A)

Red

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target

Deteriorated

Direction
of travel

NI
60

Children’s Services &
Lifelong Learning

2009/2010
Q1 Target
80%

Title

Percentage of core assessments for children's social care that
were carried out within 35 working days of their
commencement

52.3%
(A)

Red

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target

Deteriorated

Direction
of travel

Corrective action: There has been an increase in recorded referrals to children’s social care following the Baby Peter case. This has had an impact on capacity
as the service has a number of vacancies but with some agency social work cover. The vacancies have been recruited to and social workers will come into post
during September/October. Children are being seen and safeguarding action taken as required but there is a delay in social workers recording the assessments
on ICS given the level of demand. Assessment team managers have been asked to provide action plans by the end of August to address improving recording.

Context:

PI no

Portfolio

Corrective action: There has been an increase in recorded referrals to children’s social care following the Baby Peter case. This has had an impact on capacity
as the service has a number of vacancies but with some agency social work cover. The vacancies have been recruited to and social workers will come into post
during September/October. Children are being seen and safeguarding action taken as required but there is a delay in social workers recording the assessments
on ICS given the level of demand. Assessment team managers have been asked to provide action plans by the end of August to address improving recording.

Context:

Children’s Services &
Lifelong Learning

Portfolio

Corrective action: The introduction of the Multi Systemic Therapy team will provide a new alternative to custodial sentences thereby reducing in future the
number of sentences to custody.

Context:

PI no

Portfolio

The following indicators have not met the 2009/10 quarter 1 targets:

4. Wirral Performance Quarter 1 2009/10 - Exceptions

13

Page 39

NI
65

Children's Services &
Lifelong Learning

Percentage of children becoming the subject of Child
Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time.

Title
Red

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target

20%
23.6%
Lower=Better (P)

2009/2010
Q1 Target
Deteriorated

Direction
of travel

NI
68

Children’s Services &
Lifelong Learning

Percentage of referrals to children's social care going on to
initial assessment

Title
72.0%

2009/2010
Q1 Target
43.1%
(P)

Red

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target

Deteriorated

Direction
of travel

NI
113

Children’s Services &
Lifelong Learning

NI
117

Children’s Services &
Lifelong Learning

16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or
training (NEET)

Title

Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 25 year olds

Title

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target

Red

2009/2010 On
Q1 Actual target
8.3%
10.4%
Lower=Better (P)

2009/2010
Q1 Target

5.3%
Lower=Better (E)

2009/2010
Q1 Target

Unchanged

Direction
of travel

Deteriorated

Direction
of travel

Corrective action: Connexions, LSC and Work Based Learning federation are working closely to ensure that provision is being made available and accessible
for young people particularly in relation to ensuring appropriate E2E provision. Additional provision is now in place until the end of contract year and it is

Context: There are a variety of factors contributing to the current rise in the number of young people who are NEET. The economic downturn has seen an
increase in the number of young people who are leaving employment, particularly with no qualifications up to Level 2.

PI no

Portfolio

Corrective action:

Context:

PI no

Portfolio

Corrective action: A full audit of the use of the ICS system has taken place by the newly appointed ICS project manager. As a result of this a revised training
schedule has been developed. The ICS project plan has also been agreed for implementation. Systematic error reports will be in place from mid July and
resources are in place to target support to those teams where it is most needed.

Context: Children's social care has seen and increase in referrals of 35% based on the same period last year. For this first quarter an average of 300 referrals a
month have been recorded, compared to just below 200 a month for the same period last year. In addition the new ICS system for recording information and case
files is currently being implemented, for which some social care teams are awaiting training.

PI no

Portfolio

Corrective action: Twenty one of the 89 registrations to date have been previously registered. Investigation into the case histories of these children is underway.

Context:

PI no

Portfolio

14

Page 40

anticipated that 2009 leavers should also receive sufficient places. The extension of the September Guarantee to include all 17 year olds who finished statutory
education in 2008 means that intensive tracking and support is being put in place to ensure that an offer of a place in learning is an entitlement for the eligible
cohort. Combined with the focus on 2009 leavers, this should have a positive impact on re-engaging young people into learning and/or appropriate provision. The
focussed activity will help to identify any specific provision issues/gaps which can in turn be raised with the LSC. The advent of the “Wirral Apprentice”
programme will provide a range of opportunities for NEET young people to enter into sustainable learning. The ESF funded Wirral Wise projects also have a
specific focus on retaining young people in learning and re-engaging those in the NEET group back into Education, Employment or Training. Alongside this the
Activity Agreement Pilot continues to see 70% of young people at the most complex end of the re-engagement spectrum progressing into EET options.

15

Page 41

1. Being healthy

Local Authority:Wirral

40.8
38.5
28.3

NI 52 Take up of school lunches - Primary
(2008/09)

NI 52 Take up of school lunches - Secondary
(2008/09)

NI 53 Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6 – 8
weeks from birth (2004/05)

9.6
19.1

71

NI 55 Obesity among primary school age
children in Reception Year (2007/08)

NI 56 Obesity among primary school age
children in Year 6 (2007/08)

NI 57 Children and young people’s participation
in high-quality PE and sport (2007/08)

NI 54 Services for disabled children (2009/10)

15

62.7

Local
Area

NI 51 Effectiveness of child and adolescent
mental health (CAMHS) services (2008/09)

NI 50 Emotional health of children (2008/09)

National Indicators

Every Child Matters indicators: National Indicator Set

Local area children's services performance profile: latest data

5. Benchmarking Profile

78

19.1

11.0

30.8

49.0

44.1

13

65.4

Statistical
Neighbours

76

18.9

9.9

44.5

37.6

40.6

14

63.4

England

upper

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Above

Below

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

upper middle

lower

Inline

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

England Comparison

lower middle

16

Reporting Date: Quarter 3 : 14 August 2009

Page 42

2. Staying safe

100.0

55.6

NI 61 Stability of looked after children adopted
following an agency decision that the child
should be placed for adoption (2007/08)

4.2

3.4

NI 67 Child protection cases which were
reviewed within required timescales (2007/08)

82.1

89.8

72.7

99.1

13.0

76.3

78.8

14.5

63.0

153.4

159.6

65.9

46.0

12.9

41.9

Statistical
Neighbours

42.2

3.1

45.1

Local
Area

NI 65 Children becoming the subject of a Child
Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time
(2007/08)

NI 68 Referrals to children’s social care going
on to initial assessment (2007/08)
NI 59 Initial assessments for children’s social
care carried out within 7 working days of referral
(2007/08)
NI 60 Core assessments for children’s social
care that were carried out within 35 working
days of their commencement (2007/08)
NI 64 Child protection plans lasting 2 years or
more (2007/08)

NI 69 Children who have experienced bullying
(2008/09)
NI 70 Hospital admissions caused by
unintentional and deliberate injuries to children
and young people (2007/08)
NI 71 Children who have run away from
home/care overnight (2009/10)

NI 48 Children killed or seriously injured in road
traffic accidents (2005/07)

NI 199 Children and young people’s satisfaction
with parks and play areas (2008/09)

NI 58 Emotional and behavioural health of
children in care (2008/09)

National Indicators

74.8

99.3

13.3

5.9

79.8

72.2

63.3

123.9

47.2

6.6

44.8

England

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

Below

Inline

Inline

Above

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

England Comparison

17

Page 43

3. Enjoying and achieving

51.9

95.2

NI 63 Stability of placements of looked after
children: length of placement (2007/08)

NI 66 Looked after children cases which were
reviewed within required timescales (2007/08)

74.0

8

NI 76 Achievement at level 4 or above in both
English and Maths at KS2 (Floor) (2007/08)

31.9

NI 73 Achievement at level 4 or above in both
English and Maths at Key Stage 2 (Threshold)
(2008/09)

NI 94 Progression by 2 levels in Maths between
Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 (2007/08)

NI 93 Progression by 2 levels in English
between Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2
(2007/08)

NI 92 Narrowing the gap between the lowest
achieving 20% in the Early Years Foundation
Stage Profile and the rest (2007/08)

NI 109 Number of Sure Start Children Centres
(2008/09)

49.0

12.0

NI 62 Stability of placements of looked after
children: number of moves (2007/08)

NI 72 Achievement of at least 78 points across
the Early Years Foundation Stage with at least 6
in each of the scales in Personal Social and
Emotional Development and Communication,
Language and Literacy (2007/08)

Local
Area

National Indicators

10

74.3

33.6

50.1

92.4

65.5

10.6

Statistical
Neighbours

9

71.9

34.8

48.5

91.7

64.7

11.3

England

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

England Comparison

18

Page 44

75.1

76.6

NI 107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - White group (2007/08)

NI 107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Mixed group (2007/08)

27.4

37.4

NI 102 Achievement gap between pupils eligible
for free school meals and their peers achieving
the expected level at Key Stages 4 (2007/08)

32.3

22.9

22.9

21.7

NI 102 Achievement gap between pupils eligible
for free school meals and their peers achieving
the expected level at Key Stages 2 (2007/08)

62.3

72.7

74.2

73.6

50

45.3

47.6

England

77.7

67.9

69.5

73.5

75.4

51

51.3

56.8

Statistical
Neighbours

NI 107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Chinese group
(2007/08)

46.2

51

NI 104 The Special Educational Needs
(SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving Key Stage 2
English and Maths threshold (2007/08)

NI 107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Black group (2007/08)

62.0

NI 100 Children in care reaching level 4 in
Maths at Key Stage 2 (2008/09)

76.9

62.0

NI 99 Children in care reaching level 4 in
English at Key Stage 2 (2008/09)

NI 107 Key Stage 2 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Asian group (2007/08)

Local
Area

National Indicators

Below

Inline

Below

Above

Inline

Inline

Inline

Above

Inline

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

Below

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Above

Inline

England Comparison

19

Page 45

4

NI 78 Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at
GCSE and equivalent including GCSEs in
English and Maths (Floor) (2007/08)

53.4

49.7

55.6

79.3

44.4

50.0

NI 84 Achievement of 2 or more A*-C grades in
Science GCSEs or equivalent (2007/08)

NI 108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - White group (2007/08)

NI 108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Mixed group (2007/08)

NI 108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Asian group (2007/08)

NI 108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Black group (2007/08)

NI 108 Key Stage 4 attainment for Black and
minority ethnic groups - Chinese group
(2007/08)

NI 105 The Special Educational Needs
(SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving 5 A*-C GCSE
inc. English and Maths (2007/08)
46.4

50.2

NI 75 Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at
GCSE or equivalent including English and
Maths (Threshold) (2007/08)

NI 101 Children in care achieving 5 A*-C
GCSEs (or equivalent) at Key Stage 4 (including
English and Maths) (2008/09)

Local
Area

National Indicators

63.5

48.6

48.3

51.2

47.2

50.5

45.3

47.9

Statistical
Neighbours

68.5

40.8

52.2

48.8

47.1

49.6

44.5

47.8

England

Inline

Inline

Above

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

Below

Inline

Above

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

England Comparison

20

Page 46

4. Making a positive
contribution

246
276
128

NI 85 Post-16 participation in physical sciences
(A Level Chemistry) (2007/08)

NI 85 Post-16 participation in physical sciences
(A Level Maths) (2007/08)

NI 85 Post-16 participation in physical sciences
(A Level Physics) (2007/08)

4.9

NI 87 Secondary school persistent absence rate
(2007/08)

24

NI 89 Improvement in time taken to come out of
the special measures category (2007/08)

NI 115 Substance misuse by young people
(2008/09)

13.5

-6.7

NI 112 Under 18 conception rate (2006/07)

NI 113 Prevalence of Chlamydia in under 20
year olds (2008/09)

71.7

NI 110 Young people’s participation in positive
activities (2008/09)

NI 103 Special Educational Needs – statements
issued within 26 weeks (2008/09)

0

NI 89 Reduction of number of schools judged as
requiring special measures (2007/08)

NI 88 Number of Extended Schools (2008/09)

86

NI 86 Secondary schools judged as having good
or outstanding standards of behaviour (2007/08)

NI 90 Take up of 14-19 learning diplomas
(2008/09)

Local
Area

National Indicators

13.9

-1.2

67.3

17

5.6

73

Statistical
Neighbours

10.7

-9.8

69.0

19

5.6

76

England

Inline

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

Inline

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

England Comparison

21

Page 47
0.3

82.0

98.2
0.08

NI 44 Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth
Justice System disposals -White (2008/09)

NI 45 Young offenders engagement in suitable
education, employment or training (2008/09)

NI 46 Young offenders access to suitable
accommodation (2008/09)

NI 114 Rate of permanent exclusions from
school (2007/08)

0.4

NI 44 Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth
Justice System disposals - Black or Black British
(2008/09)

0.2

-0.3

NI 44 Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth
Justice System disposals - Asian or Asian
British (2008/09)

NI 44 Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth
Justice System disposals - Mixed (2008/09)

4.0

NI 43 Young people within the Youth Justice
System receiving a conviction in court who are
sentenced to custody (2008/09)

-0.6

1.0

NI 19 Rate of proven re-offending by young
offenders (2008 frequency rate after 9 months)

NI 44 Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth
Justice System disposals - Chinese or other
ethnic group (2008/09)

1600.0

National
Indicators

NI 111 First time entrants to the Youth Justice
System aged 10–17 (2007/08)

National Indicators

0.12

97.3

78.4

1.2

-0.1

-0.6

0.9

-1.3

6.2

0.8

2035.0

Local Area

0.11

95.7

73.2

-2.1

1.0

-0.5

4.3

-2.6

6.3

0.8

1907.2

Statistical
Neighbours

Inline

Inline

Inline

Above

Inline

Above

England

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Inline

Statistical Neighbour
Comparison

22

England
Comparison

Page 48

5. Achieving economic wellbeing

32.8

31

91.1

NI 81 Inequality gap in the achievement of a
Level 3 qualification by the age of 19 (2007/08)

NI 106 Young people from low income
backgrounds progressing to higher education
(2006/07)

NI 147 Care leavers in suitable accommodation
(2007/08)

74.0

NI 79 Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by
the age of 19 (2007/08)

48.0

40.0

NI 148 Care leavers in employment, education
or training (2007/08)

NI 80 Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by
the age of 19 (2007/08)

9.1

NI 117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in
education, training or employment (NEET)
(2007/08)

59.5

79

NI 91 Participation of 17 year-olds in education
or training (2007)

NI 82 Inequality gap in the achievement of a
Level 2 qualification by the age of 19 (2007/08)

19.0

Local
Area

NI 118 Take up of formal childcare by lowincome working families (2006/07)

NI 116 Proportion of children in poverty
(2008/09)

National Indicators

90.2

21

28.2

44.2

51.6

71.8

62.2

8.7

74

20.0

Statistical
Neighbours

88.8

19

25.1

46.9

55.9

72.4

65.1

6.9

77

17.4

England

Inline

Below

Below

Inline

Above

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

Statistical
Neighbour
Comparison

Inline

Below

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

Below

Inline

Inline

Inline

England Comparison

23

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11 SEPTEMBER 2009

Agenda Item 10

YOUTH HUB COMMISSIONING REPORT

INTRODUCTION
This report sets out the process that was followed to commission four Super Youth Clubs, one
in each of the four districts of Wirral. Shaftesbury was identified previously as the Birkenhead
Super Youth Centre Hub as part of the My Place submission (Cabinet My Place Report 25
September 2008). In line with the Cabinet decision at its meeting on 23 April (Cabinet report,
Commissioning Criteria for universal, open access youth support services), a second round of
commissioning took place during May – July 2009 to identify a further three providers for
Wallasey, West Wirral and South Wirral. The commissioning process has identified Eastham
Youth Club as the Centre for South Wirral, Wallasey Fire Station for Wallasey and West Kirby
Youth Centre for West Wirral.
1.

Background

1.1 Recent government policy documents for youth services have set out expectations on the
range and quality of provision of youth services. The Treasury Document – Aiming High a
Ten Year Strategy for Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP) DCSF October 2007,
reported on broad consultation returns from young people which indicated that young
people
wanted places that were modern, available at times that suited young people
and that offered a broad range of programmes that would engage more young people than
is currently the case. As part of this policy development, the “My Place” initiative was
launched last year and organisations and local authorities were encouraged to bid for
funding to significantly improve youth facilities across the country. Although Wirral’s bid of
Shaftesbury youth club was unsuccessful, the process undertaken to identify the Wirral bid
identified the need to take a critical look at the youth facilities currently operational across
Wirral. An outcome of this selection process was that Shaftesbury Youth Club was
identified as one of Wirral’s four Super Youth Centres. It was agreed that a further three
needed to be identified in order that each district has a Hub.
1.2 On the 11 November 2008, the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
presented its findings from its review of Youth Outreach, in the report entitled ‘Youth
Outreach Scrutiny Review – Final Report’.
Recommendations one and thirteen
recommended that there should be a restructuring of outreach services with the aim of
providing a Hub or key contact point in each district and current facilities for young people
should open more evenings.
1.3 The recommendations in the Overview and Scrutiny report and the work to find a My Place
nomination acted as a catalyst for the proposals presented to Cabinet in the
Reconfiguration of the Youth Service report on 23 November 2008. Cabinet approved the
move to the development of four main hubs, one in each district. Each Hub would be
required to act as the main focus for the planning of youth provision across the District.
Included in this development was the provision of a consistent youth offer that would
provide access to support services and also opportunities to take part in a broad range of
activities including youth arts, outdoor education, international exchanges and personal
development opportunities. Key to the offer was ensuring that facilities would be available
over six nights and particularly at the week-ends and available to young people who might
otherwise take part in anti social behaviour. Cabinet also requested that a consultation
with stakeholders be undertaken to test out the proposals and to finalise the
commissioning criteria.

Page 49

1.4 A final report containing the final commissioning criteria (see section 2.1) was presented to
Cabinet on 23 April. This report also set out the commissioning panel membership and
the timeline for the process as there were to be three rounds of commissioning for positive
activities for young people (PAYP), hubs commissioning and the Activity Fund, with the
panels drawn from the following partners:
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

The Primary Care Trust
The Link Forum
14-19 Team
Neighbourhood Pathfinder
Police
Children and Young people’s Department
Wirral’s Asset Management Department

1.5 Underpinning the development of the large Super Youth Centres or Hubs is the
implementation of the Integrated Youth Support Strategy (IYSS). Targets linked to IYSS
were included in the commissioning brief and tendering organisations were expected to
demonstrate how the work of the Hubs would contribute to meeting those targets.
2

Commissioning Process

2.1 The following criteria were approved by cabinet.
a) Organisations must demonstrate the following criteria if they are to be
considered for short listing:
In responding to each criterion, organisations are expected to consider equality issues
as they apply to each section.
Values, Aims and Objectives
!
!
!
!

Evidence of how service provision is supporting the Integrated Youth Support
Strategy and the Children and Young People’s Plan.
Young people influencing the planning, delivery and evaluation of services.
Evidence of effective planning to address indicators of deprivation.
Evidence of youth service provision for looked after young people, young people
with Learning Disabilities and Difficulties or other vulnerable young people

b) An organisation that is working towards delivering high quality provision and is
outward looking.
Understanding of the requirements
!

!

!

!

Demonstrate value for money in provision of universal/ targeted youth work. This is
to include open youth work and an agreed number of planned group work sessions
which will be linked to local policy issues such as teenage pregnancy and the
Respect agenda.
Recording systems of attendances by young people at different projects. – This
system to be compliant with local authority requirements regarding unique
individuals.
Provision of youth services that ensure outputs linked to national Key Performance
Indicators underpinning Targeted Youth Support, Integrated Youth Support and
Participation indicators.
Centre based managers to have as minimum qualification –NVQ level 3 Youth Work
qualification
Page 50

!
!
!
!

Evidence of effective planning to address indicators of deprivation.
Evidence of how service provision supporting the Integrated Youth Support
Strategy.
Provision of four hub youth centres operating six nights per week including Friday
and Saturday.
Provision of seven satellite youth centres operating three nights per week.

Track record
!
!
!
!
!
!

Evidence of effective planning to address indicators of deprivation.
Experience of successful external funding applications.
Evidence of partnership working across organisations to further develop youth
services for young people.
Evidence of consortium approaches to planning and delivery of services.
Evidence of previous investment in service provision for young people.
Evidence of positive outcomes for young people being delivered.

Delivery concept
!
!

!
!
!

Young people influencing the planning, delivery and evaluation of services.
Demonstrate value for money in provision of universal/ targeted youth work. This is
to include open youth work and an agreed number of planned group work sessions
which will be linked to local policy issues such as teenage pregnancy and the
Respect agenda.
Provision accessible to public transport routes.
Evidence of programme planning to meet local /district needs
Evidence of how service provision supporting the Integrated Youth Support
Strategy.

Quality and training
!
!

Centre based managers to have as minimum qualification –NVQ level 3 Youth Work
qualification
Programme of staff development to increase the number of professionally qualified
youth workers.

2.2 The commissioning panel for this round had representation from:
!
!
!
!
!
!

The Tranmere Neighbourhood pathfinder
The Primary care trust
The Link Forum
14-19 Team
Wirral Children and Young people’s Department
Wirral’s Asset Management Team

2.3 The commissioning process involved drawing up a tender document which included the
Criteria to be completed as a Method Statement. The use of Method Statements
encourage organisations to demonstrate how they will operate the service and in what
areas they would be unique or enhance existing provision.

2.4 There were seven stages in this commissioning round:

Page 51

!

Advertise Commissioning opportunity via press and provider and community networks
and council website.

!

Procurement workshop – open to all potential providers this provides the opportunity to
fully discuss issues and the tendering process.

!

Desk Top review of applications (commissioning officers)– score response to criteria
(Method Statement)

!

Consultation with young people regarding the hub submission.

!

Validation by commissioning panel of desk top scores and shortlist for interview/
presentation

!

Interview/ presentation/ panel recommendations

!

Cabinet report – recommendations presented

2.5 Following a number of meetings between the Management Committees of both voluntary
and statutory youth providers’ one tender from the Youth service was submitted and this
tender covered the provision of Hubs in Wallasey, South Wirral and West Wirral. The
nominated centres were Wallasey Fire station, Eastham Youth Centre and West Kirby
Youth Club, Shaftesbury Youth Club had already been commissioned as the Birkenhead
Super Centre. Without applying any weighting to the scores the potential raw score was
150, each proposal for the Hubs scored 127.7. (Please see table over.) The decision by
the commissioning panel was to interview representatives from the Youth Service with a
view to recommending that they be commissioned if they met the criteria set for the
presentation and interview. The topic for the presentation and interview questions are
attached as Appendix A.
2.6 Meetings to identify hubs took place at district level and involved the Youth and Play
Service and other providers.
2.7 Key features of the recommended bid included steps to be taken in planning future service
planning. These included:
!
!
!
!
!
!

The establishment of multi-agency groups to undertake district planning
The involvement of other organisations key to the successful delivery of the Integrated
Youth Support Strategy
Consistency in data gathering regarding outcomes for young people
The partnership working that facilitated the process of tender preparation and future
service delivery
Targeted work with vulnerable young people
The establishment of the direction of travel for youth services if they are to meet
Integrated Youth Support Strategy requirements.

Page 52

Question No.
1(PW)
2(PW)
3(PW)
4(PW)
5(PW)
6(SW)
7(PW)
8(PW)
9
10(SW)
11(PW)
12
13(PW)
14
15(PW)
16
17
18(PW)
19(PW)
20
21
22(PW)
23(PW)
24
25(PW)
26
27
28(PW)
29(PW)
30(PW)
Total

3

Possible
Score
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
150

Average
Score
Wallasey
4
5
4
4
4
4
5
4
3.5
4
4
5
5
4
5
4
4.1
4
4
5
5
5
4
4
4
3
4
4.5
4.6
4
127.7

Possible
Score
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
150

Average
Score
South Wirral
4
5
4
4
4
4
5
4
3.5
4
4
5
5
4
5
4
4.1
4
4
5
5
5
4
4
4
3
4
4.5
4.6
4
127.7

Possible
Score
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
150

Average
Score
West Wirral
4
5
4
4
4
4
5
4
3.5
4
4
5
5
4
5
4
4.1
4
4
5
5
5
4
4
4
3
4
4.5
4.6
4
127.7

Next Steps

3.1 A key requirement of any organisation that was to be awarded a contract for running the
Hubs was that they would co-ordinate the planning of youth services at district level. In the
Hub tenders the Youth service indicated that district planning would be undertaken to meet
targets linked to IYSS requirements, community safety and community issues. Included in
this approach is a commitment to monitor and evaluate service provision.
3.2 Part of this new approach to deliver youth support is the need to make more people aware
of the change in provision. A web editor has been appointed to oversee the development
of the Positive activities website. Funding for this post was originally part of a Department
for Children, Schools and Family grant. This has now been embedded in the budget and
this post enables Wirral to fulfil its statutory obligation to advertise positive activities for
young people. In addition the Youth service and partners will spend the next few months
promoting the new developments. This approach will also be complementary to the
launch of the Activity Fund Programme which has been used to fund additional activities to
enhance the Youth Offer.

Page 53

3.3 It is anticipated that the centres will not be fully operational until November 2009. The
Wallasey Hub is currently being modified and it is anticipated that this will be open by
January 2010.
3.4 The development of Hubs was linked to the development of seven satellites in the districts,
Cabinet have indicated that this will happen at a future date but the impact of the work of
the Hubs needs to be embedded before a further commissioning round is undertaken.
4.

Financial Implications

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. The funding of the web editor
post is already mainstreamed within the budget.
5.

Staffing Implications

5.1 The proposals for the new structure can be met from within existing staffing levels.
Some staff will be required to relocate to other youth clubs and any one relocated will
be entitled to disturbance allowance from within the Youth Service budget.
6.

Equal Opportunities Implications

6.1 The proposals for the reconfiguration of the Service and the Commissioning Criteria for
Targeted and Universal Services seek to improve the quality of service provision and have
more engagement with vulnerable young people.
7.

Community Safety Implications

7.1 The work undertaken in the Hubs is planned in recognition of the IYSS requirements. Work
will be planned to address community safety concerns and wider community issues.
8.

Local Agenda 21 Implications

8.1 There are none arising from this report.
9.

Planning Implications

9.1 Proposed developments at Wallasey Fire Station have been approved by the Planning
Department. There are no planning implications for the other sites.
10. Anti Poverty Implications
10.1

The improved Youth Offer will enable young people to access accreditation opportunities
and enhance their training and development opportunities.

11. Social Inclusion Implications
11.1 The aim of targeted and universal provision is to promote greater social inclusion. Planning
for youth clubs at district level will be in response to needs assessment.
12. Local Member Support Implications
12.1 This report affects all wards.
13

Background papers
!

Cabinet Report 27 November 2008
Page

54

!
!
!
!

Aiming High – The Treasury’s Ten Year Strategy for Positive Activities 2007.
My Place cabinet report September 2008
Cabinet Report 23 April 2009
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11 November 2008 ‘Youth
Outreach Scrutiny Review – Final Report’

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That
1) Following a commissioning process the following are identified as the four Super Youth
Clubs for Wirral:
!
!
!
!

Birkenhead
Wallasey
South Wirral
West Wirral

- Shaftesbury
- Wallasey Fire Station
- Eastham Youth Club
- West Kirby Youth Club

2) To continue the work with the management committees of both statutory and voluntary youth
clubs to ensure continuity coherence of the Youth Offer
3) To consider the potential development of satellites when the work of the four Hubs has been
embedded.
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board endorse the recommendations as above.

Report Author: Maureen McDaid

Contact: 666 4508

Page 55

Page 56

Panel member:

0
1
3
5

Mentioned all areas

No mention of areas

Overall Score:

Score:

Comments:

Areas to look for:
! Involvement in other positive activities such as
volunteering
! Understanding of district needs reflected in district
Planning
! Understanding IYSS agenda
!
!
!

Make more informed choices on health, behaviour etc
Positive engagement in the community
Level of involvement of partners in decision making

Presentation: Title: If you were awarded the contract who would be your partners and how would you ensure in the localities they
would be equal partners in respect of:
! Planning
! Delivery
! Monitoring
! Accountability

Tender No.

Organisation:

APPENDIX A

Page 57

4. How will hard to Reach
and vulnerable young
people such as young
people with learning
difficulties and disabilities
be engaged in the Hubs
and what will be your

3. What could we expect to
see in six months and in
two years.

2. How would you tackle
Inequalities in the districts
through the Hubs in West
Wirral, South Wirral and
Wallasey Districts

1. How would you ensure
quality in provision- what
standards would you
apply?

Question

Provider:

Attendances
Young people’s evaluation
Self assessment
Staffing levels
Range of programme
Accredited/ Recorded
outcomes
! Identification of inequalities
and diversity across the
districts ie health, educational
outcomes, community safety,
resilience and differentiated
responses and responses to
these to help young people
make informed choices.
! District plan
! Different / more partners
! Expanded programme
Two years
! Direct contribution to priorities
! Agreement on quality /
Outcomes
! Fewer complaints from
community
! Hubs seen as safe place to be
! Outreach workers
! Specialist staff
! Use of data to identify hard to
reach and vulnerable young
people
! Planned interventions to
!
!
!
!
!
!

Key words

Panel Member:
Notes/Comments

0 1 3 5

0 1 3 5

0 1 3 5

0 1 3 5

Score

Page 58

7. What arrangements will
you put in place to ensure
the safe dispersal of
young people at the end of
evening sessions,
specifically big events?

6. This is phase one of the
reconfiguration of the
Youth Service, how would
you propose to work with
satellites in the district?

5. How does your proposal
for the Hubs fit in with the
Integrated Youth Support
Strategy?

measure of success?

!
!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!
!
!

!

!
!

demonstrate distanced
travelled by young people
Broad range of activities
Programmes reflecting IYSS
priorities
Programmes to address risk
taking behaviour, alcohol and
substance misuse
Accredited outcomes
Reduction in NEET
Promotion of Health &
Wellbeing
Joint programming
Shared priorities
Joint planning groups to
address shared issues
Joint training
Shared resources
Discussions with police and
community groups
Deployment of staff
Risk Assessments
Links with Mersey travel
Involvement of young people
in identification of solutions
0135

0135

0135

Agenda Item 11

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11 SEPTEMBER 2009
ACTIVITY FUND COMMISSIONING REPORT

INTRODUCTION
This report set out the process that was followed to commission activities across the four
districts from the Activity Fund. The contracts will operate from 1st October 2009 until 31
March 2011. The Activities provided are to enhance the Youth Offer in the districts. A key
aim of the process was to increase the range of partnership working and where possible to
identify new providers. The outcome of the commissioning process is that the three
organisations submitting tenders, Birkenhead Youth Club, Blossom Inspiration and Wirral
Youth & Play Service and Partners, have been recommended by the commissioning panel
as approved providers for the activities as outlined in section 2.4. The Board is asked to
approve the recommendation.
1.

Background

1.1

As part of the Aiming High proposals, additional money has been made available to
local authorities under Positive Activities for Young People. (PAYP) This funding has
previously been routed through Connexions and was used to provide a number of
support packages for young people at risk of truanting, offending, negative peer group
pressure and associated health risk. Specific activities were commissioned to engage
young people during the school holidays. For 2009-10 and 2010-2011 the uplift for
the commissioning of additional universal activities in 2009-10 was £148,369 and in
2010-2011 £176,995. Each year’s allocation was allocated to each district on the
basis of the percentage of young people aged 13-19 years of the total population of 13
-19 age group living in each district. Guidance produced by the Department of
Children Schools and Families, makes clear that this uplift in funding is to support
targeted and universal week-end diversionary activities for young people. In each
case the nominal allocations were as follows:
District
Birkenhead
Wallasey
South Wirral
West Wirral

1.2

Activity Fund 2009/10
£43,555
£40,740
£33,233
£30,841

Activity Fund 2010/11
£51,958
£48,600
£39,645
£36,792

At the meeting on 23 April Cabinet also approved the criteria to be applied when
commissioning organisations to provide universal and week-end activities (see section
1.5). In addition, Cabinet approved the organisations/ departments from which
representatives for the commissioning panel could be recruited, these included:
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Police/ Community Safety
Fire & Rescue
Link Forum
14-19 Partnership/LSC
PCT- Strategic Lead
Neighbourhood Pathfinder Organisation
Children and Young People’s Department
Representative from Transport
Members of the Executive Youth Board
Extended Schools link

Page 59

!

Member of staff from Asset Management Department

1.3

The organisations and departments listed reflect the number of stakeholders involved
in delivering the youth agenda. Representation from Asset Management was to
ensure any decisions made had taken account of the Council’s Strategic Asset
Review.

1.4

Key to the process was the focussing of resources to ensure a better Youth Offer in
each of the districts. Young people had already been consulted at the Youth Voice
Conference and through Youth Forums on the type of activities and places they would
like to have commissioned. Tendering organisations were asked to demonstrate how
they would work in partnership to enhance the current provision and meet the diverse
needs of Wirral’s young people. Although all the organisations could demonstrate
partnership links, the tender from the Youth & Play Service and Partners detailed how
partnership working would be planned and monitored by newly formed district planning
groups. The commissioning process included a new approach in the use of Method
Statements. Although the process was in line with the Compact, staff from the
Children & Young People Department’s Contracts Team is meeting with Central
Procurement to review the process to ensure it is meeting all requirements. In
addition, meetings with the Link Forum have taken place to review this process identify
areas for improvement and build these into future commissioning processes. Cabinet
approved the criteria for the commissioning process which is detailed below.

1.5

Organisations had to demonstrate the following criteria if they were to be short listed:
Understanding of the requirements:
!
!
!

!

!
!

Young people influencing the planning, delivery and evaluation of services.
Successfully meet the requirements of the Pre Qualifying Questionnaire Method
Statement (PQQ)
Demonstrate value for money in provision of universal/ targeted youth work. This is
to include open youth work and an agreed number of planned group work sessions
which will be linked to local policy issues such as teenage pregnancy and the
Respect agenda.
Recording systems of attendances by young people at different projects. – This
system to be compliant with local authority requirements regarding unique
individuals.
Provision accessible to public transport routes.
Provision of youth services that ensure outputs linked to national Key Performance
Indicators underpinning Targeted Youth Support, Integrated Youth Support and
Participation indicators

Track Record:
!
!
!
!

Evidence of programme planning to meet local /district needs
Experience of successful external funding applications.
Experience of partnership working across organisations to further develop youth
services for young people.
Evidence of consortium approaches to planning and delivery of services.

Delivery Concept
!
!

Young people influencing the planning, delivery and evaluation of services.
Be fully accessible for young people who are Looked After or who have learning
Difficulties and Disabilities. Page 60

!
!

Provision that is supporting the Integrated Youth Support Strategy
Demonstrate value for money in provision of universal/ targeted youth work.

2.

The Commissioning Process

2.1

The Commissioning criteria is detailed in section 1.5. The Commissioning Panel for
this round had representation from the following:
!
!
!
!

2.2

The Link Forum
Asset Management Department
14-19 Team
Children & Young People’s Department

The following is a summary of the commissioning process:
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Tender advertised 10 June
Procurement Workshop 16 June
Desktop evaluation 16 & 17 July
Consultation young people 16 July
Validation Panel and short listing 21 July
Interviews 27 July (please see appendix A for interview questions)
Evaluation Matrix signed off by panel 27 July
Report to Children and Young people’s Strategic Partnership Board 11 September
Report to cabinet 24 September
Contract Awarded 1st October

2.3

In year one all tender requests were of good quality and could be funded but in year
two the bids for Wallasey and Birkenhead exceeded the allocation and consequently
the final allocation for these areas is less than requested.

2.4

In this round, the panel were commissioning organisations to provide activities which
included Big Nights, Sit Offs, Specialist Youth Support and Specialist activities.
Core Activities
Listed below are a number of core activities which the Children & Young People’s
Department is seeking to deliver within each District.
Big Nights
Two large events in each District each month, to take place at the week-ends e.g.
band nights, discos, large youth arts events or other appropriate diversionary
activities.
Sit Off’s
This will be a Friday evening service. Three hours per night (7.00pm – 10.00pm) to
be held at two separate venues within each District.
The provision of attractive comfortable venues, which may be a local Youth Club, Café
Bar, or dedicated access by young people to other types of venues, where young
people can meet, spend the evening and purchase affordable food and refreshments.
Specialist Youth Support

Page 61

This is support which can be commissioned from specialist youth support
organisations or, specialist youth support organisations can submit their own tender.
The purpose of this fund is to ensure that barriers to engagement by vulnerable young
people are addressed to ensure greater take up from these groups.
Participation Worker
Participation Workers will have to support the implementation of the Council’s
programme of participation activities including young people’s involvement at Youth
Club/ Project Level, involvement by young people at the District Board, Youth Forums,
Youth Voice Conference and Youth Parliament.
Additional Activities
As well as the Core Activities listed above the Children & Young People’s Department
is also seeking to deliver a number of additional youth services, namely:Cultural / Specialist Provision
Specialist provision can be buying in specific activities such as wall climbing, cycling,
canoeing, youth arts, DJ activities etc.
Response to Local Needs
This money can be used to pay for additional activities which will be planned to
respond to locally identified need.
2.5

Below is the list of organisations that will be commissioned and the scores they were
awarded at interview. The detail of the units purchased in Year 1 and Year 2 from
each organisation can be found in Appendix B.
Interview Panel Scores
Tender
Birkenhead Youth Club
Blossom Inspiration
Youth and Play service

Score
12.5
19.5
28.25

Rank Order
3
2
1

2.6

The Board will note the differences in scores between the organisations. The
commissioning panel considered the key location of Birkenhead Youth Club, its
positive track record and its ability to involve large numbers of young people. In
consideration of this, the panel decided to allocate the funding as indicated on the
understanding that the management of Birkenhead Youth Club will work with officers
from the Children and Young People’s Department to address those areas identified
during the interview which were considered to be underdeveloped.

3.

Next Steps

3.1

Once the contracts have been awarded, organisations will be expected to go
operational within two weeks of the contract being awarded.

Page 62

3.2

There will be a final round of commissioning for this money in the spring of 2010.
Prior to this commissioning round, full monitoring and inspection of the provision plus
additional consultation with young people will have been undertaken. Information
from the consultation will be used to establish priorities for the commissioning. In
addition, feedback from the inspection and monitoring will be used to help the
commissioning panel decide if they wish to buy additional units from any of the current
providers. Work to prepare the paperwork for this commissioning to make it more
user friendly will start in October and the Link Forum has been invited to be involved.
There will also be an opportunity for the panel to revisit the allocations for year two as
outlined in Appendix B if they wish to purchase more units or flex the contract.

3.3

District planning groups will be established to ensure that plans will take account of
district priorities and at the same time develop links to the Hubs. In addition, meetings
with representatives from the management committees are planned with the intention
of establishing a provider forum to develop quality assurance procedures. In
November / December there will be a monitoring inspection of the provision and
although this will involve external assessors, it is hoped that members from the
providers forum can be involved as a means of developing and monitoring skills.

4.

Financial implications

4.1

These activities are funded from the uplift to the Positive Activities allocation to Wirral.
Funding will cease on 31 March 2011

5.

Staffing implications

5.1

Organisations will provide staff from within their staffing complement, in the case of
the Youth & Play Service this will be by sessional workers.

6.

Equal opportunities implications

6.1

The aim of this commissioning is to provide activities that will engage with more young
people than has previously been the case. The district plans will be developed against
the back drop of district priorities to address disadvantage.

7.

Community safety implications

7.1

The Method statements indicate that staff from community safety has been involved in
the preparation of the bids. The plans make reference to work which will be targeted
at ‘hot spot’ areas and involving young people in positive activities.

8.

Local Agenda 21 implications

8.1

There are no implications arising from this report.

9.

Planning implications

9.1

There are none arising from this report

10

Anti-poverty implications

10.1

The organisations commissioned will work to develop in the young people those
personal skills which enhance employability in young people.

11.

Social inclusion implications

Page 63

11.1

The work commissioned will promote social inclusion through the engagement with
more young people through the range of opportunities provided.

12.

Local Member Support implications

12.1

This report affects all wards

13.

Background papers

13.1

Cabinet Report 23 April

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board endorse the report.

Report Author: Maureen McDaid

Contact: 666 4508

Page 64

Page 65

If your regular membership were to
go on a sabbatical for 12 months
what would you do?

What venues are available in your
district?
Which are you going to use and for
what?

!
!

What plans have you got to engage
those who do not currently use your
service?

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!
!
!

!
!

Would have already prepared for
this as the young people would
have told the workers that they

Location of facilities – links to
transport
Contribution to programme
delivery
Accessible to all young people
Mix of programme

Use of website when ready
Promotional visits to other
organisations
Advertise the service
opportunities through other
family support agencies.
Advertise through schools
Involve young people in
promotion activities
Promote the opportunities via
outreach workers

Monitoring of data returns
Observation of practice
Joint monitoring meetings
Agreed operational standards
Agreed outcomes

Joint planning
Agreed referral processes

Key words

What role will you play in driving
forward quality improvement of the
youth offer?

Describe how you will in practice
work in partnership within your
district/s?

Question

Appendix A Activity Fund commissioning 25/06/2009
Notes/Comments

Score
0.1.3.5

Page 66

What links are there to extended
schools and complementary
activities for young people in the
area

What are the key areas of need in
the district/s?

Why do young people not attend your
organisation and what do you
attempt to do to engage them?

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

Links to Extended schools
clusters
Promotion of activities via
extended school clusters
Promotion of programme via
young people at schools

Participation by young people
Informal learning opportunities
provided by a diverse range of
programmes
Support for young people
Access to appropriate support
services
Information, Advice and
Guidance
Experiences that are fun
Diversion away from risk taking
activities

User Surveys are carried out
Young people complete regular
evaluations of the programme
! Attendance bench marks are
established for different types of
programme and these are used
as part of any quality assurance
procedures.
Targets for overall attendance
are set for each unit

were taking a sabbatical.
Review the programme with
young people and refresh.
Review the promotion and
communication strategy
Link in with other partners to
drive up attendance
Visit schools to find out what the
young people would like to have
available.

Page 67

assemblies
Referral pathways from
Extended Schools to coordination youth worker
Links developed to promote
other complementary activities
subject to CRB and other
safeguarding issues

0 – fails to meet any criteria
1 – Partial answer
3 – Good answer with examples
5 – Excellent answer covers all areas with evidence

Score :

!

!

Birkenhead

AREA
Birkenhead

YEAR 1

Birkenhead

Page 68

Birkenhead
Youth Club

Youth & Play
Service &
Partners

Blossom

£9,380

£34,134.95

£
REQUESTED
£6,720

6 units (Big Nights @ £480) =£2,880
24 units (Sit Offs@£88) =£2120
24 units (Cultural/Specialist@£91) =£2190
24 units (Response to local needs@£91) =£2190

UNITS
96 unit (Cultural/specialist@£70)) =£3,360 per 12
week course 1 Rev Up, 1 Blossom
5 units (Big Nights @ £215) =£1075
26 units (Sit Offs@£163.34) =£4246.92 Viking
12 units (Sit Offs@£70) =£840 Tranmere
Community Project
312 units (Specialist youth support@£13.15)
=£4103 Response A&G
234 units (Participation worker @£12.44)=
£2910.80
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£126.15) = £3280
Wirral Youth Theatre
6 units (Cultural/Specialist @£253.04) = £1518.24
Urban Adventure
2 units (Cultural/Specialist @£480) = £960
Tranmere Community Project
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£63.85) = £1660
Charing Cross
18 units (Response to local needs@£190) =£3420
ABST
26 units (Response to local needs@£77.06)
=£2003.52 Sports development
8 units (Response to local needs@£166) =£1328
TCP trampoline club
12 units (Response to local needs@£68.50) =£822
TCP Courtney Park
26 units (Response to local needs@£167) = £4342
Grange Baptist
As requested

As requested

£34,134.95

£9,380

UNITS
As requested

£
ALLOCATED
£6,720

APPENDIX B – DISTRICT ALLOCATION

Youth & Play
Service &
Partners

Wallasey

Wallasey

£34354.19

£
REQUESTED
£6720

No tender for this Area

Blossom

Wallasey

AREA

YEAR 1

Page 69

20 units (Sit Offs@£471.04) =£9420.80 Wallasey
YMCA
260 units (Specialist youth support@£13.23)
=£3440 Response A&G
234 units (Participation worker @£12.44)=
£2910.80
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£126.15) = £3280
Wirral Youth Theatre
6 units (Cultural/Specialist @£253.04) = £1518.24
Urban Adventure
18 units (Response to local needs@£190) =£3420
ABST
26 units (Response to local needs@£77.06)
=£2003.52 Sports development
26 units (Response to local needs@£126.61)
=£3291.92 Moreton Youth Club
20units (Response to local needs@£171.65)
=£3433 Wallasey YMCA Body Zone

96 unit (2 courses @£3,360) 1 Rev Up, 1 Blossom

UNITS
As requested
As requested

£34354.19

UNITS

£
ALLOCATED
£6720

Youth & Play
Service &
Partners

South Wirral

South Wirral

No tender for this Area

£24895.48

No tender for this Area

£
REQUESTED

South Wirral

AREA

YEAR 1

Page 70

1 unit (Big Night @£872.16) =£872.16
26 units (Sit Offs@£167.00) =£4342.00 Digit
Project/kontactabus
182 units (Specialist youth support@£13.71)
=£2495.50 Response A&G
234 units (Participation worker @£12.44)=
£2910.80
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£126.15) = £3280
Wirral Youth Theatre
6 units (Cultural/Specialist @£253.04) = £1518.24
Urban Adventure
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£37.76) =£981.76
Sports at Bebington school
10 units (Response to local needs@£190) =£1900
ABST
26 units (Response to local needs@£77.06)
=£2003.52 Sports development
26 units (Response to local needs@£131) =£3406
bebington High targeted work with young women

UNITS

£24895.48

£
ALLOCATED

As requested

UNITS

Youth & Play
Service &
Partners

West Wirral

South Wirral

No tender for this Area

£28940.16

No tender for this Area

£
REQUESTED

West Wirral

AREA

YEAR 1

Page 71

3 unit (Big Night @£2049.66) =£6149 Talent Night
2 units (Big Night @£355.00) =£710 Skate Event
182 units (Specialist youth support@£13.71)
=£2495.50 Response A&G
234 units (Participation worker @£12.44)=
£2910.80
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£126.15) = £3280
Wirral Youth Theatre
6 units (Cultural/Specialist @£253.04) = £1518.24
Urban Adventure
23 units (Cultural/Specialist @£85) =£1955
Pioneer people Hip Hop sessions
6 units (Response to local needs@£190) =£1140
ABST
26 units (Response to local needs@£77.06)
=£2003.52 Sports development
24 units (Response to local needs@£191.67)
=£4600 Pensby Thingwall and Heswall Area team
drop in
5 units (Response to local needs@£160) =£800
Social partnership of Fishing

UNITS

£28940.16

£
ALLOCATED

As requested

UNITS

Blossom

Birkenhead
Youth Club

Youth &
Play Service
and
Partners

Birkenhead

Birkenhead

Birkenhead

AREA

YEAR 2

Page 72

12 units (Big Nights @ £480) =£5760
50 units (Sit Offs@£85) =£4240
50 units (Cultural/Specialist@£98) =£4480
50units (Response to local needs@£98)
=£4880

7 units (Big Nights @ £215) =£1505
52 units (Sit Offs@£165.77) =£8620.04
Viking
18 units (Sit Offs@£70) =£1260 Albany
Youth Club
624 units (Specialist youth
support@£13.15) =£8081 Response A&G
468 units (Participation worker @£12.01)=
£5621.60
52 units (Cultural/Specialist @£110.19) =
£5730 Wirral Youth Theatre
12 units (Cultural/Specialist @£254.42) =
£3053.04 Urban Adventure
3 units (Cultural/Specialist @£480) = £1440
Tranmere Community Project
26 units (Cultural/Specialist @£63.85) =
£1660 Charing Cross
36 units (Response to local needs@£190)
=£68400 ABST
52 units (Response to local needs@£67.32)
=£6500.64 Sports development
10 units (Response to local needs@£166)
=£1660 TCP trampoline club
18 units (Response to local needs@£68.50)
=£1233 TCP Courtney Park

£50971.54

192 unit (Cultural/specialist@£70) =£3,360
per 12 week course 2 Rev Up, 2 Blossom

UNITS

£19760

£
REQUESTED
£13440

£29,122.11

£9380

£
ALLOCATED
£13440

5 units (big nights @ £215),
24 units (sit offs @ £165.7 Viking)
8 units (sit offs @ £70 Albany), 276
units (Specials Youth Support @
£13.15)
468 units (Participation worker @
£12.07)
23 units (Cultural/Specialist @
£254.42 – Urban Adventure)
3 units (Cultural/Specialist @ £480
TCP)
24 units (Cultural/Specialist @ £63.86
Charing X)
16 units (Response to local needs @
£190 ABST)
43 units (response to local needs at
£67.32 sports development)
6 units (response to local needs @
£166 TCP trampoline)
8 units (response to local needs @
£68.50 TCP Courtney Park)

6 units (Big Nights @ £480) =£2,880
24 units (Sit Offs@£88) =£2120
24 units (Cultural/Specialist@£91)
=£2190
24 units (Response to local
needs@£91) =£2190

As requested

UNITS

Youth and
Play Service
& Partners

Wallasey

YEAR 2

Wallasey

£47782.81

£
REQUESTED
£13400

No tender for this Area

Blossom

Wallasey

AREA

YEAR 2

Page 73

48 units (Sit Offs@£152.02) =£7297.12
Wallasey YMCA
520 units (Specialist youth
support@£12.99) =£6755 Response
A&G
468 units (Participation worker
@£12.01)= £5621.60
52 units (Cultural/Specialist @£110.19)
= £5730 Wirral Youth Theatre
12 units (Cultural/Specialist @£254.17)
= £3053.04 Urban Adventure
36 units (Response to local
needs@£190) =£6840 ABST
52 units (Response to local
needs@£67.32) =£3500.64 Sports
development
52 units (Response to local
needs@£129.04) =£6710.04 Moreton
Youth Club

192 unit (4 courses @£3,360) 2 Rev
Up, 2 Blossom

UNITS

£35146.25

£
ALLOCATED
£13440

48 units (sit off @ £152.02 YMCA)
312 units (specialist youth support @
£12.99)
468 units (Participation worker @
£12.01)
31 units (Cultural/Specialist @
£110.19 WYT)
8 units (Cultural/Specialist @ £254.18
Urban Adventure)
21 units (response to local needs @
£67.32)
51 units (Response to local needs @
£129.04

As requested

UNITS

South Wirral

No tender for this Area

£40513.83

Youth and
Play Service
& Partners

South Wirral

£
REQUESTED

No tender for this Area

AREA

South Wirral

Page 74

52 units (Sit Offs@£167.00) =£8684
Digit Project/kontactabus
364 units (Specialist youth
support@£13.09) =£4766 Response
A&G
468 units (Participation worker
@£12.01)= £5621.60
52 units (Cultural/Specialist @£110.19)
= £5730 Wirral Youth Theatre
12 units (Cultural/Specialist @£254.42)
= £3053.04 Urban Adventure
52 units (Cultural/Specialist @£33.66)
=£1750.32 Sports at Bebington High
School
20 units (Response to local
needs@£190) =£3800 ABST
52 units (Response to local
needs@£67.32) =£3500.64 Sports
development
9units (Response to local
needs@£186.55) =£1679 Bebington
High targeted work with young women

UNITS

£40513.83

£
ALLOCATED

As requested

UNITS

Youth and
Play Service
& Partners

West Wirral

West Wirral

No tender for this Area

£36288.29

No tender for this Area

£
REQUESTED

West Wirral

AREA

YEAR 2

Page 75

3 unit (Big Night @£1403)
=£4209Talent Night
364 units (Specialist youth
support@£13.09) =£4766 Response
A&G
468 units (Participation worker
@£12.01)= £5621.60
52 units (Cultural/Specialist @£110.19)
= £5730 Wirral Youth Theatre
12 units (Cultural/Specialist @£254.42)
= £3053.04 Urban Adventure
12 units (Response to local
needs@£190) =£2280 ABST
52 units (Response to local
needs@£67.32) =£3500.64 Sports
development
24 units (Response to local
needs@£191.67) =£4600 Pensby
Thingwall and Heswall Area team drop
in
5 units (Response to local
needs@£160) =£800 Social partnership
of Fishing

UNITS

£36288.29

£
ALLOCATED

As requested

UNITS

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

Agenda Item 12

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11th SEPTEMBER 2009
AIMING HIGH FOR DISABLED CHILDREN COMMISSIONING REPORT

Executive Summary
This report provides an update on progress on the Wirral Local Area Implementation
programme for Aiming High for Disabled Children in relation to Short Breaks
provision, further to reports provided in January and March. The Government are
requiring the Council and NHS Wirral to provide for a stepped change to short
breaks services and to deliver on what is termed the Full Service Offer, designed to
meet the needs of all groups of disabled children. The report advises on action taken
in meeting the reporting and performance requirements set out by Together for
Disabled Children, who are administering the Short Breaks programme on behalf of
the DCSF; over the next two years to March 2011.
1.

Background

1.1

Context

The approach seeks to transform services across sectors to provide support to
achieve the best outcomes for children and young people with disabilities and enable
children and their families to live ordinary lives. Over the next two years, as the
funding and programme reforms take effect, the Government expects local
authorities to realise the ambition that:
!
!
!
!

Disabled children will have the same opportunities to develop and fulfil their
potential as all other children.
Families with disabled children will get the support they need, when they need it.
Universal children’s services will be more genuinely inclusive of disabled
children, including those with complex needs.
Disabled children will be at the heart of the ongoing change programme for
children’s services.

The new national indicator, NI 54 on services for disabled children will measure the
experience of families with disabled children; and will involve an annual survey of
200 families within each Council area. It involves feedback on the performance of
Education, Health and Social Care, against the “Core Offer” standards ; a national
set of expectations around information, transparency, participation, assessment and
feedback. The Council and PCT will receive the results on the first survey within the
next month.
1.2

Governance arrangements

The new Governance structure has been submitted and approved by the Childrens
Trust Board, and also by Cabinet. This structure has now been introduced, with
terms of reference and group membership confirmed. The Executive Group will be
extended to include representation from the Link Forum and a parental

Page 77

representative, and will oversee all elements of the Aiming High programmes. It is
also proposed to review the Learning Disability and Difficulty Group and Plan to
ensure we respond fully to the key themes of the Core offer of the wider Aiming High
programme.
The Short Breaks programme envisages significant workforce development – which
Council and NHS services will need to support. A Workforce Group has been
established with the remit of ensuring a coherent workforce plan. The likely
recommendations will need to be considered jointly by the Council and NHS, as they
should also drive planning across other service areas.
1.3

Short Breaks programme

1.3.1 Reporting requirements
The Short Breaks programme is the major delivery programme at this time, which is
dealt with in this report, in addition an update is provided on two other programme
strands. Together for Disabled Children published a new set of reporting
requirements, called the Staged Progression Framework, with expectations that the
Council and NHS will evidence progress in working towards meeting the Full Service
Offer for Short Breaks.
This sets out 4 key objectives with 4 stages to be met, in terms of:
! Completion of an Initial Needs assessment and embedding consultation
! Evidencing via the Delivery Plan and effective data management, increased levels
of provision
! Producing revised eligibility criteria for short breaks provision which parents feel
are fair, and are consistently communicated and applied
! Providing a Workforce Plan which addresses the needs of universal service
providers and specialist service providers
Together for Disabled Children have written to each Director of Children Services in
July to confirm they see this Council as needing medium support at this time. There
is no indication within the letter of what the support levels will provide for, or when
these will be reviewed .The distribution of authorities at the current time stands at:
Intensive (4), High (26), Medium (44), Low (78). Further evidence logs were
submitted in July and the Council is at this time on target with reporting deadlines.
Now the Project manager and are in post we would also expect to confirm further
improvements in our performance over coming months.

1.3.2 Project Management
A Project Manager has been appointed for the 2 year period to oversee the delivery
of the programme and Transformation Plan. Three further fixed term posts have
been created within the project team to provide for capacity to ensure the
programme now moves forwards at pace, in line with reporting requirements.

Page 78

! Inclusion and Development Officer (Specialist services) the post incumbent will
focus on ensuring young people are consulted, that specialist services continue to
develop person centred models of working and to set up an emergency support
scheme. This post has been filled by a temporary secondment from the residential
service into this position.
! Inclusion and Development Officer (Universal services) the post incumbent will
focus on ensuring that new activities are developed and that young people are
readily able to access universal provision. The post incumbent will also ensure
effective monitoring of contracted activity. This post has been filled after both
internal and external advertisement.
! Team Support Officer – this post holder will support the team in all administrative
functions and support the team in improved data management, and information
provision. This post has now been filled by after both internal and external
advertisement.
1.3.3 Consultation and Engagement
The views of children, young people and parents/carers are at the heart of the
funding proposals. We have undertaken a comprehensive consultation process to
develop our Short Breaks vision and understand the needs of children and young
people and parents/carers. This involved:
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

A Consultation event in October 2008 to start developing the vision and
understand needs from a parent and carers focus.
A Children and young people’s event during October inclusion week.
A Questionnaire sent to all parents (whose children have Special Educational
Needs (SEN) in November 2008
A feedback event in January 2009 – to confirm the vision and develop the
priority areas in developing the Delivery Plan.
Fun days were organised in July for young people and their families to talk to
parents and young people further
Further consultation has been undertaken with groups of young people – across
the range of special schools and youth groups. A further series of consultations
are planned across several mainstream schools in September
A newsletter is being produced every 2-3 months to keep parents and carers up
to date with developments.

Ongoing consultation throughout the next two years is a requirement of the
programme, to evidence that change is being driven by children and families, and
truly reflects their needs.
1.4 Transition
1.4.1 Transition reporting requirements
Aiming High for Disabled Children produced in May 2007 identified Transition as an
area for further investment by the Government. Transition Guidance was produced
on behalf of the Government by the Council for Disabled Children. Helen Wheatley

Page 79

who authored the guidance was involved in helping initially review of our transition
work programme and in April of this year to launch of our local protocol. The
guidance defines disabled children as including young people with special
educational needs in its broadest terms as those young people who receive support
at a school action and action plus level besides those in receipt of a statement.
This element of the Aiming High Programme, is being overseen on behalf of the
Government by the Transition National Support Team.
Wirral received £10,000 in 2008/9 to undertake a self assessment of current
arrangements, and a similar sum in 2009/10 to develop its action plan further.
Following submission of its first self evaluation, it has been rated as requiring a
medium offer at this time.
1.4.2 Transition priorities
An action plan has been developed and the further self assessment questionnaire
has now been completed.
1.5

Parent Consultation and Support

Parent carer consultation and involvement forms a key strand of Aiming High
programme, and is driven throughout the Core Offer standards and reporting
standards for Short Breaks and Transition. The Council and PCT are required to
report its performance against benchmarks which were provided as part of our initial
assessment in 2008, and update the tracker to evidence improvement.
Local priorities have been the development of the Family Information service and
adoption of a Carer Consultation Strategy by the Council and the NHS. A
Consultation Strategy has been developed with parents, which Cabinet has been
formally noted. The newly formed Engagement & Involvement Group is developing a
second action plan to develop our consultation activity further.
Within the 0-19 Parenting commissioning programme the SEN Parent partnership
service was drawn together with Parent Support activity. Wired who were successful
in tendering for this service started their new contract in July.
Wirral Family Consultation Forum has been supported to secure a further £10,000
grant from the Government to support the development of parent forum support and
structures in Wirral.
A training programme for parents and carers in engagement has been delivered and
is currently being evaluated.

2.0

Short Breaks Development Strategy and Delivery Plan

The Short Breaks Development Strategy confirms our needs assessment, vision and
key objectives and confirms our strategic direction; key principles being:

Page 80

2.4.1 Early intervention and prevention
We know that disabled children do best when they and their families are enabled to
lead as ordinary lives as possible. We also know from families that regular and
reliable short breaks from caring, make a significant difference in their ability to cope.
Early intervention means intervening soon after the identification of a need. It does
not necessarily mean intervening in the early years of a child`s life, although
frequently the two go together. Early intervention and prevention has been central to
our redevelopment of residential and family support services over a number of years.
2.4.2 Personalisation / equipping young people for independence in adult life.
Direct Payments, individualised budgets and supported living initiatives indicate that
social policy is moving in the direction of enabling disabled people to manage their
own care, choose how they lead their own lives and control the services they need
The aim is to improve outcomes for people: and ensure that they are treated with
greater dignity, are safer and lead more fulfilling lives rather than be passive
recipients of services.
This policy shift, whilst predominant in adult social care, is also relevant to a strategy
for disabled children and young people. It is relevant to a strategy for disabled
children and young people in three ways:
!

Many parents who use carer support services benefit from being in control of those
services;

!

Some parents also receive support from adult services in their own right

!

Equipping young people with the skills and mindset to achieve their potential for
independence and fulfilment as young adults must start long before the transition to
adult services.
2.4.3 Engagement and Involvement
These principles permeate all strands of the Aiming High programme. Paragraph 1.5
set out our actions in this area
2.4.4 Financial sustainability
Successful implementation of this Strategy depends on managing the twin pressures
of rising demand for services and severe financial constraints for the Council and the
PCT. Long term pressures remain in terms of rising numbers of children with more
complex health needs and ASD specifically which will continue to require
fundamental changes are made in the commissioning and delivery of services.
The additional Government funding for short breaks in the region of £2m revenue
and £0.75m capital is a significant boost for services. This programme was first
announced in May 2007 and has been accompanied by significant publicity since

Page 81

then. With the new money have come greater expectations from an increasing
number of families, who may feel their needs have not been met over time, and
having been consulted are keen that they receive increased support.
In essence meeting the needs of disabled young people is a three-way responsibility
between universal services for all children, specialist disability services and parents.
For this programme to achieve the right balance will involve :
!
!

!

!

!

!

ensuring commissioning rigour by the Council and PCT working in partnership,
increasing choice by removing the barriers to universal services for all disabled
children and young people. With suitable support, participating in universal
services can be a more cost-effective, as well as child-centred, way of
supporting families.
taking children with lower levels of need out of bureaucratic processes to access
“ordinary” services., or being required to have an assessment or care plan or this
purpose.
equitable arrangements whereby parents who can afford to do so, contribute to
the cost of services.
a continued shift of resources from residential short breaks services to home and
community based support; with improved early intervention, parenting and
specialist family support services working in a more co-ordinated fashion,
reducing „life-time costs! by making sure that disabled people have every
chance when young to develop their potential for economically active and
independent adult lives.

The Revised Delivery Plan attached, sets out how we will implement the programme
in detail.

3.0

Commissioning of services

3.1

Commissioning update

New services have now been commissioned using the Joint Strategic
Commissioning Framework ; designed to ensure that services are planned and
secured to meet the needs of children, young people and their families and provide
best value (considerations of quality and cost). Within the programme requirements
we have been able to evidence due rigour with regards to establishing the principles
of contestability and in stimulation of the market. Parents and young people have
been fully involved with Officers in evaluating tenders.
Existing service level agreements for play scheme were reviewed within this
process, including those for Wirral Play Council, Crossroads and Merseyside Autistic
Childrens Society.
A report on the process and outcomes will be presented to the next Cabinet later this
month.

Page 82

3.2

Capital

Proposals continue to be developed via the Capital Group of the Aiming High
programme. Fresh guidance has been produced by Together for Disabled Children
which reinforces
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Needs assessment - The programme plan should have a clear link to the local
area’s needs assessment and demonstrate additionality
Consultation – The programme should reflect the outcomes of consultation with
parent and children and young people
Commissioning strategy - Capital programme planning should flow directly
from the local area’s joint strategic plan for the development short breaks.
Consider and plan for longer-term sustainability
Link with revenue funding - Planning for capital spend should link clearly to
revenue spending plans
Cost/benefit analysis - A cost/benefit analysis should be carried out as part of
the planning process
All planning should be joint with the PCT.
Capital spend should directly support short break provision. General access
should not be the primary aim of the expenditure.
Carry over of funding against planned expenditure may be allowed up to end of
March 2011, but will not be permitted after that date

At this stage a number of options have been advanced :
3.2.1 Residential
Cabinet have now approved a service review of the residential units at Willow Tree
and Rosclare House – it being expected that we will move all short breaks services
into Rosclare House. This will compliment the modernisation of these services and
improve value for money. A scheme of work has been developed for Rosclare House
linked to the Capital programme for children`s homes. This will only require minor
additional funds.
3.2.2 Resource Centre
From our initial consultations Parents were keen for a one stop approach and for
information services to be improved. Our thinking would be to evaluate the potential
of Willow Tree Resource Centre to become this new information hub.
3.3.3 Changing Places
Involves providing toilets with hoists and changing beds at a number of key venues
across the Borough to improve the potential of young people with profound and
multiple disabilities, who have continence needs, to be able to go out with their
families and with short breaks carers. The lack of this specialist equipment being
available, often means restricted opportunities for such children to go out, or being
changed on the floor of public toilets which is both undignified and unsafe. There is a
national programme which has produced information on how schemes might be
developed. For this part of the programme to successfully move forwards will require

Page 83

a corporate approach to this issue, and ensuring it is effectively linked into the
strategic asset review.
3.3.4

Sports and leisure facilities

It is proposed that schemes of work be considered at the Europa Pools, and other
key sites. This will in both circumstances provide enhanced changing facilities which
would be accessible during leisure activities and as a venue of a changing place.
Other minor works are being considered to improve parking, to improve immediate
access.
3.3.5 Play equipment
Within the Play Strategy it is proposed to develop 4 play sites with enhanced
facilities across the Borough. It is also proposed to allocate some funding to enhance
Leisure services / other providers specialist equipment to improve the offer for young
people with physical disabilities
3.3.6 Community based provision.
It is proposed to investigate the funding of a minor scheme of works with voluntary
sector providers. A bidding scheme has been developed similar to that for the
Extended schools

3.3.7 Adaptations
In relation to the capital element of the Aiming High programme, this will support the
adaptation of properties for the Contract Carer scheme and the provision of
equipment. A nominal allocation has been proposed at this time based on providing
several larger schemes of work and a number of smaller schemes. The Council will
need to put in place legal agreements with families where significant adaptations are
made. It is envisaged that a several schemes of work will need to be undertaken,
which should be able to be managed in a timely fashion given our current adaptation
expertise in the Council. The use of pod designs are also being considered, as they
offer a quick and ready adaptation which can be put in place in weeks, and moved if
the foster carer does not want to continue with the scheme.
3.3.8 Equipment
It is proposed to reserve funding for the purchase of hoists and beds which might
permit other family members to offer support. Currently children are only allocated
one set of equipment
3.3.9 Transport
It has been proposed to fund new vehicles for the use of families to improve
community access

Page 84

3.4

Community Grants

Within the programmes is it is proposed to make money available to community
organisations and parent led groups who provide short breaks for disabled young
people and their families. The purpose is to stimulate activity within this sector; this
approach is viewed as good practice within this programme. It is proposed that these
grants would be between £500 and £5,000 per year. This process will be less
demanding than that of the commissioning brief, and more proportionate given the
lower level of grant funding. Organisations would also be offered further advice
within the process of other funding streams which they could apply to for funding.
We are currently evaluating requests for grants by using a panel approach, to bring
key stakeholders into the decision making process. This approach has been used by
other Councils, and is seen as good practice within the Aiming High programme.
Clear criteria will be attached to this funding to ensure it meets the targeted groups
of young people. It will also be the expectation that groups receiving funding will
support the programme by acting as a conduit for information distribution and to
support consultation activity.

4.0

Residential Service Review

Cabinet have approved a service review being instituted of residential short break
provision, to scope out the next stages of service development, and provide
recommendations for the structuring and best positioning of these services.
The Government review by Price Waterhouse Coopers (2007) “Market for Disabled
Childrens Services – A Review” reinforced the view that there should be a
separation between commissioning and provision of services within both the Council
and NHS. Within Aiming High guidance the Council will be expected to review it’s
provision to consider whether services should be commissioned with an external
provider, or develop a service level agreement with in house services. A more robust
approach to the monitoring of costs and outcomes is similarly required.
The Children with Disability residential service has, over a number of years, changed
from providing long term provision, to one of shared care and short breaks services
to ensure children can remain happily within their families. The numbers of children
looked after and / or placed out of Borough has significantly reduced has reduced
over the last few years, by the delivery of improved parenting support. A tendering
exercise was completed last year which has identified a number of local providers
who could provide placements as and when the need arose.
A number of young people are shortly to move into Adult provision which will leave
significant capacity within the residential service at Rosclare House. It is proposed
that a thorough review should be undertaken of both Willowtree and Rosclare to
determine the future configuration of residential short break provision within Wirral,
which reflects the further shift in balance to providing increased family based short
breaks and family support. An increased alignment between the Children with
Disabilities Service (CYPD) with the Learning Disability CAMHS service will underpin
this approach, and reinforce effective parenting strategies.

Page 85

5

Financial implications
The Aiming High for Disabled Children programme is grant funded. The
revenue and capital allocations for 2009-10 and 2010-11 are shown in
paragraph 2.1.
There are no indications of the level of funding from 2011-12 onwards,
although it is likely financial commitments for Short Breaks will increase.

6

Staffing Implications

6.1

Increased Project Management capacity in now in place using the increased
funding provided.

6.2

The service review may recommend changes to the residential and family
support teams.

7

Equal Opportunities Implications

7.1

The changes are driven by the imperative that disabled youngsters should
have personal and developmental opportunities and be supported to lead an
ordinary life as valued members of their community.

7.2

Short breaks should therefore not just be used as a crisis intervention, but
should also be used routinely to help parents and carers to maintain and
improve the quality of care they naturally wish to provide.

7.3

Within the first stages of the Transformation Plan a needs analysis will be
undertaken to identify if there are groups of disabled children who currently do
not receive effective support.

7.4

Involving parents in the design of services is a critical part of this programme
and the delivery of the Core offer.

7.5

Young people with disabilities have more significant difficulties in
communicating their preferences and will need more imaginative and
individualised approaches in ensuring their involvement.

8

Human Rights Implications
Decisions on all aspects of the proposed changes will be informed by the
Convention on Human Rights to ensure that the rights of children in our care
and our employees are protected.

9

Local Agenda 21 Implications
No specific implications emerging from this report.

10

Community Safety Implications

Page 86

Improved commissioning of care provision should reduce the vulnerability of
disabled young people to bullying and for some young people to being
engaged in or subject to crime.
11

Planning Implications
None at this time

12

Local Member Support Implications
Disabled young people live in all wards.

13

Background Papers
Aiming High for Disabled children
Updates on these and other measures are available at
www.everychildmatters.gov.uk/ahdc

Recommendations
1. To confirm the strategic direction of the Short Breaks Strategy and provide any
further direction on implementation.
2. To note the Consultation Strategy and approve formal launch.
3. To note the Commissioning Brief and Capital proposals.

Further information in the form of appendices is available from the report author on
request.
Report Author: Clive Groves

Contact: 606 6801

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88

Agenda Item 13
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11TH SEPTEMBER 2009
LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN – ADVOCACY SERVICES

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report makes recommendations for approval to commission a Looked after Children’s
Advocacy Service. The service is a statutory requirement under 1989 Children Act and
clarified in the Adoption Act 2002, which should be provided at arms length from the Council.
Its purpose is to ensure that “Children who are looked after have trusted people to whom
they can speak on their behalf to local authorities and others.”
The Advocacy service for Looked After Children and Care Leavers is intended to help and
support in giving them a voice, this includes support around complaints. The service is
available for all Looked After Children and Care Leavers living both on Wirral and outside of
Wirral.
Generally such services are provided by Third Sector organisations or Social Enterprises.
The proposed provider will make provision for the service to be available to children who are
currently Looked After or have been Looked After. The service provider will also carry out
information gathering in respect of the views and wishes of Looked After Children to inform
the Council’s planning for the provision of services to this group.
1.

Background

1.1

The Children and Young People’s Department Social Care Branch in partnership with
allied commissioning agencies and service providers, is reviewing and recommissioning the Third Sector services it purchases on behalf of children and their
families. Two major exercises in respect of such services have already been carried
out in 2009; leaving a small number of previously contracted services to be dealt with
on an individual basis.

1.2

In line with this a commissioning process was used to identify the prospective
providers. The service was advertised in the usual way and tenders were invited from
suitably qualified organisations. A commissioning panel was established to identify a
successful applicant from amongst the submitted applications that passed an initial,
short-listing stage. The commissioning panel had two applicants to choose from:
!
!

1.3

Scs Kinder (formerly known as Safecare Children`s Services)
National Youth Advocacy Services

The procurement process consisted of advertisements in the press and on-line. This
was followed by an invitation to prospective providers to submit a method statement
and a Pre Qualifying Questionnaire in respect of their proposed provision of the
service. The applications were scrutinised and marked by the lead officer and a
member of the Contracts Unit. The second stage of the selection process consisted of
an interview during which set questions were presented to the applicants and a ten
minute presentation was made by the applicant to the panel. The applicants had been
notified of the subject to be addressed in their invitation to appear before the panel a
fortnight in advance. The selection panel consisted of officers from the Children and
Young People’s Department and Independent Chair NHS Wirral, which included the
lead officer and two others who had previously not been involved in the process.

Page 89

2

The Commissioning Process

2.1

The service was commissioned as follows:
!
!
!
!

2.2
.
2.3

2.4

Tender advertised
Closing date
Desk top evaluations
Interviews/Panel

20th May 2009
25th June 2009
1st July 2009
20th July 2009

A total of two tender documents were received by the closing date; although initially
approximately a dozen organisations requested tender packs to be sent to them.
Both applications were of a high standard and passed the Pre Qualifying
Questionnaire. There was a gap of only 3 points between the applicants; Scs Kinder
scored 102 points and NYAS 105 points. As a result both tenderers were referred on
the next stage of the process.
At the next stage of the process both organisations had been asked in advance to
prepare a ten minute presentation on the following topic: “Describe the attitudes;
attributes and experiences required of a person carrying out the role of an advocate
for Looked After Children. How would these contribute to the well being of a Looked
After Child?”

2.5

Both organisations were also asked the same set of questions which were intended to
draw out the knowledge and understanding of the organisation in respect of the
requirements of an Advocacy Service for Looked after Children. Each organisation
was scored on the presentation and the questions. The final scores from both stages
of the process.
o Scs Kinder
154
o NYAS
147

3.

Recommendation of the Commissioning Panel

3.1

The panel recommends that that the identified preferred provider; Scs Kinder be
awarded the contract for one year.

3.2

There is an option to extend the Contract for a second year upon satisfactory
completion of the first year’s provision of the service.

3.3

That the unsuccessful bidder; NYAS, are given appropriate feedback.

4.
4.1

Financial Implications
The funding for the service was advertised as £61, 943 from Social Care Branch (with
a yearly increase to take account of inflation if the Council`s finances allow) and the
applicants included the cost of staffing the service in their tenders.

5.

Staffing Implications

5.1

There are no staffing implications for the Council. If the recommended provider is
approved there will be no TUPE implications as they are the existing provider and
employer of the existing staff.

6.

Equal Opportunities Implications
2

Page 90

6.1

Looked After Children are amongst the most vulnerable children and young people
both on Wirral or in placements outside Wirral and the service is specifically intended
to promote equality of opportunity.

7.

Community Safety Implications

7.1

The service is intended to promote both inclusion and social cohesion and would be
expected to have positive effects in terms of building safer communities.

8.

Local Agenda 21 Implications

8.1

There are no significant implications.

9.

Planning Implications

9.1

There are no significant implications.

10.

Anti Poverty Implications

10.1

Looked After Children have been specifically identified as likely to suffer the effects of
poverty throughout their lives unless specific steps are taken to prevent this. The
advice and assistance available from this service would be (in part) directed towards
this end.

11.

Social Inclusion Implications
The planned services will contribute to social inclusion by supporting Looked After
Children and Care Leavers in having a voice

12.

Local Member Support Implications

12.1

This report affects all wards.

13.

Background papers
None.

14

RECOMMENDATIONS:

14.1 That the board recommend the approval of the award of the contract to the identified
preferred provider, Scs Kinder for one year.
14.2 That the unsuccessful bidder; NYAS, are given appropriate feedback in respect of their
tender.

Report Author: Janice Monty

Contact: 666 4496

3

Page 91

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92

Agenda Item 14
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11TH SEPTEMBER 2009
PARENTING AND PREVENTION COMMISSIONING 0 – 19
RACIAL MINORITY ETHNIC FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICE
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report makes recommendations for approval to procure a Family Support Service for
Racial Minority Ethnic families (RME) for 2009/11 to support children, young people and their
families. The commissioning and procurement of this service will complete the parenting and
prevention commissioning process which was approved by Wirral Council Cabinet in April
2009.
This recommendation has been robust, multi-agency (including voluntary and community
sector involvement) and inclusive of parents, children and young people.
1.

Background

1.1

The service will provide Family Support to Racial Minority Ethnic Children, Young
People and their Families by offering direct support and to ensure access to the range
of preventative services. The service will support these families across a broad age
range (0-19) working within the CAF/Team around the Child framework and will offer
flexible support.
It will also provide parenting groups using the evidence based
programme Strengthening Families Strengthening Communities. This service will
have a particular focus which is inclusive of those parents who are less likely to
engage with mainstream services.

1.2

The framework was a joint commissioning group and joint procurement panel working
across the C&YPD, Wirral NHS, Third Sector and service users to plan and secure
RME Family Support Service 0-19 year old children. This proved effective and
brought cohesion to planning and prioritisation of resources.

2.

Joint Commissioning Process

2.1

This joint commissioning process joined up the planning and commissioning of
prevention and parenting services across agencies from identified existing funding
streams currently used on commissioning services. For this commissioning of RME
Family Support Service it includes:!
!

Children’s Fund (Area Based Grant)
Strategic Partnership Funding (Wirral NHS)

2.2

This process does not seek to pool funding. Any existing funding conditions would
remain intact with the associated funding stream. The process was led by the
Parenting/Prevention Commissioning Manager, Children and Young People’s
Department and the Procurement Team which lead the procurement process working
with the Business Manager within Strategic Partnerships (Wirral NHS)

2.3

The joint commissioning process is outcome focused and will focus on the outcomes
within: the Children and Young People’s Plan; Local Area Agreement; Parenting and
Family Support Strategy; Teenage Pregnancy Strategy; PCT (Wirral NHS) Strategic
Commissioning Plan.

2.4

Agreement to the commissioning priorities recommendations were endorsed by the
Children and Young People’s Strategic Management Board, focusing on the following

Page 93

outcomes:
! To safely reduce the number of children becoming Looked After (LAA priority
links to NI 68))
! Raise overall educational attainment particularly lower achieving young people
(LAA Priority NI 72)
! Narrowing the attainment gap to ensure all children and young people are not
at a health and social disadvantage (NI 92)
! To improve mental health and reduce health inequalities (NI 50, VSB08)
2.5

The procurement process consisted of advertising in the press and on-line, inviting
prospective providers to a procurement workshop and submission of a method
statement and a Pre Qualifying Questionnaire forms. The selection process also
consisted of evaluation of publicity material by potential service users (children, young
people and parents) and a selection panel consisting of senior representatives from
the Children and Young People’s Department, Wirral NHS, the Link Forum and a
Parent.
Summary of commissioning process:
Advert placed:
15/07/09
Procurement workshop: 20/07/09
Application closure:
12/08/09
Validation Panel:
19/08/09
Interviews:
24/08/09

2.6

2.7

A total of two tender documents were received by the closing date and only one
application was of a high standard and passed the Pre Qualifying Questionnaire. The
successful application to be referred to the next stage was from Wirral Multicultural
Organisation (WMO).
At interview 7 questions were asked and the scoring was 0 1 3 5 and the panel agreed
that the tenderer had to score at least 3 for each question to be successful in order to
make this recommendation to Cabinet. WMO achieved this and had a total score of
21.

3.

Recommendation of the Commissioning Panel

3.1

The panel recommended that the identified preferred provider Wirral Multi Cultural
Organisation be awarded the contract valued at £40,000 until March 2011.

4.

Financial Implications

4.1

The funding for this service was advertised as £40,000 and the applicants included
the cost of staffing the service in their tenders. This funding has been, and continues
to be an important factor in the development of the Voluntary, Community and Faith
Sector.

5.

Staffing Implications

5.1

There are no staffing implications for the Council. If the recommended provider is
approved there will be no TUPE implications as they are the existing provider and
employer of the existing staff.

Page 94

6.

Equal Opportunities Implications

6.1

In developing priorities for commissioning the Working Group agreed to address the
needs of some groups who are under-represented in the use of current provision e.g.
fathers.

6.2

Racial Minority Children are amongst the most vulnerable children and young people
and the service is specifically intended to promote equality of opportunity

7.

Community Safety Implications

7.1

The services procured will have a significant impact upon supporting families to
ensure that young people are engaged in education and positive activities and benefit
from additional help, if they need it, at an early stage.

8.

Local Agenda 21 Statement

8.1

There are no significant implications.

9.

Planning Implications

9.1

There are no significant implications.

10.

Anti Poverty implications

10.1

Working within the Common Assessment Framework, services are well placed to
support impoverished families to access appropriate services.

11.

Social inclusion implications

11.1

The planned service will contribute significantly to social inclusion by supporting
families whose children are at risk of excluded from mainstream services.

12.

Local Member Support implications

12.1

This report affects all wards

13.

Background Papers
None

RECOMMENDATIONS
(1)

That the Board recommends the approval of the procurement of services of the
recommended identified preferred provider Wirral Multi Cultural Organisation of the
contract valued at £40,000 until March 2011.

Report Author: Janice Monty

Contact: 666 4496

Page 95

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96

Agenda Item 16
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 11TH SEPTEMBER 2009
THE COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT!
!
INTRODUCTION
The CAA will focus on areas not just organisations, outcomes for communities and local priorities
as well as national targets and likelihood of future delivery. This document summarises the joint
inspectorate approach and focuses on Children’s Services Assessment

JOINT INSPECTORATE INFORMATION
The Area Assessment
This assessment will be based on three main questions (with a number of sub-questions):
! How well do local priorities express community needs and aspirations?
! How well the outcomes and improvements needed are being delivered?
Including - how good is the well-being of children and young people?
! What are the prospects for future improvements?
Evidence will come from a number of sources, including performance against LAA outcomes and
national indicators, local performance management, any inspection work, other regulatory regimes,
partnership self-assessment, place survey and other consultation work and any other relevant
sources of data.
The area assessment is not scored; it will contain a narrative judgement on the area and include
red and green flags. Green flags will be awarded for any areas of exemplary good practice that
should be shared with other partnerships. Red flags will be attributed to areas where desired
outcomes are not being achieved and if the partnership does not have realistic and effective plans
in place to tackle them. For example if Children’s Services outcomes are not good enough the
inspectorates may challenge the Children’s Trust through the award of a red flag.

An Organisational Assessment
This is an assessment of value for money and performance management and merges earlier
'direction of travel' and 'use of resources' assessments. The assessment will be scored. Ofsted’s
annual performance rating of council’s children’s services will contribute to this score. The
assessment will comprise four themes:
! Managing finance
! Governing the business
! Managing resources
! Managing performance
Scoring:
4
Performs excellently

An organisation that significantly exceeds minimum requirements

3

Performs well

An organisation that exceeds minimum requirements

2

Performs adequately

An organisation that meets only minimum requirements

1

Performs poorly

An organisation that does not meet minimum requirements

1

!

Page 97

Current Status
Peter Forrester (Audit Commission Wirral CAA lead) now liaising with the Local Strategic
Partnership (LSP) on the assessment. Emerging findings have been reported to Wirral with an
opportunity to respond with further evidence. In addition a self-evaluation is being produced for
submission by the LSP. Red and Green tags have been proposed:
Red Tags
Delivering the reduced inequalities ambition
Impact of the recession on Wirral including NEET
Skills including NEET
Life Expectancy and Health inequalities
Strategic framework for older people
Strategic housing
Green Tags
Recycling
Anti social behaviour
The Joint Inspectorates will be meeting on the 7th of September to agree their initial findings
including if the tags become flags. The findings will be shared with the LSP who can then respond.

Reporting
The Joint Inspectorate findings will be published on a web based reporting tool, this will include
information about children’s services. In addition for children’s services an Ofsted summary profile
will be published on the Ofsted website. The first reports will be published in November 2009 with
updates in January, March and June 2010.

Children’s Services Performance Profile
ECM Indicators
Direction of Travel

Area
Assessment
National
Indicator
Analysis

National Indicator
Analysis

Shared
evidence
National
Indicator
Set data

Inspection

Organisational
Assessment
National
Indicator
Analysis

Figure 1. Diagrammatic summary of CAA with a focus on Children’s Services.
2

!

Page 98

CHILDRENS SERVICES INFORMATION

Annual Performance Rating
Children’s Services will have an annual performance rating which will contribute significantly to the
managing performance theme of the organisational assessment and therefore to the Councils
overall score. The rating will be published each November as part of the CAA organisational
assessment within the joint inspectorate CAA report. The ratings are 1-4 as noted above (performs
poorly to performs excellently).

Children’s Services Performance Profile
A Children’s Services Performance Profile is published by Ofsted. The profile has three main
blocks:
1. Findings from inspected services and institutions.
2. Findings from safeguarding and looked after children inspections; unannounced inspections
of contact, assessment and referral arrangements for children in need and children who
may be in need of protection; evaluations of serious case reviews; safeguarding and looked
after children findings from recent joint area review inspections, and findings from triggered
inspections
3. Performance against Every Child Matters indicators from the NIS under 5 ECM outcome
areas.
The profile gives information across multiple years and trends. Data is compared with the national
average and statistical neighbour groups. The profile will have five tiers or layers allowing scrutiny
of the profile in detail. The profile will be updated quarterly, as data is available at different times of
the year it will contain the data available. The profile uses four fixed performance bands, cut off
points are derived from analyses of national figures.

Producing the Rating
Emphasis will be on the profile sections 1 and 2 with section 3 used to support its process. Ofsted
will apply a number of tests but also use professional judgement. The following key areas will be
taken into account:
! the proportion of inspected and regulated services, settings and institutions across the
designated categories judged good or better in their last inspection
! the proportion of inspected and regulated services, settings and institutions across the
designated categories judged inadequate in their last inspection
! findings from the annual unannounced inspections of contact, assessment and referral for
children in need or who may be in need of protection; and the findings from full
safeguarding and looked after children inspections
! findings from any triggered inspections of council children’s services (when available)
! joint area review inspection judgements on safeguarding and looked after children
! relevant findings from any serious case review evaluations that may have been conducted
! performance against Every Child Matters indicators from the NIS, including local
performance against statistical neighbours and national figures
! trends over time (where available).
The specific tests applied can be viewed in the Annual Rating document (see Appendix 2). Tests
across each of the three areas will be balanced by professional judgement. Key points are that:
! The rating is likely to be ‘performs poorly’ if performance in staying safe or enjoy and achieve
judgements across a majority of inspected settings and institutions is in the bottom band ‘red’.
3

!

Page 99

!
!

Where the performance in inspections of safeguarding or looked after children are inadequate
the rating is likely to be ‘performs poorly’
The rating is likely to be ‘performs poorly’ if a large majority of indicators in the Nis including
staying safe and enjoy and achieve is lower than similar areas.

New Inspections Overview
Inspections of LA children’s homes, fostering and adoption and private fostering arrangements will
continue. Amongst other data these will help determine the scope and timing of the two new
inspections.
Annual Unannounced Inspections of Contact, Referral and Assessment Teams
These will occur from June 2009 carried out by HMI from Ofsted, there will be one inspection in a
12 month period, 2days on site. This is an inspection of front-line practice in relation to CADT
processes. No information will need to be provided in advance, the inspectors will have access to
information such as the Ofsted performance profile, NI set, judgements from serious case reviews
(SCR), fostering and adoption datasets, summary of complaints, the new surveys of users and
staff.
Feedback will be provided at the end of the visit about emerging findings to Director / Head of
Service / Chair of LSCB. A draft letter will be sent within 5 days to the Director for a factual
accuracy check, to be returned within 5 d. The letter will be put on the Ofsted website in 20d. If
serious concerns are raised the full three year inspection of safeguarding will be brought forward. It
may also lead to a triggered inspection of aspects of safeguarding from the Joint Inspectorate.

Safeguarding children and Looked After Children
The two inspections will usually be carried out at the same time. The inspectors are Ofsted and the
Care Quality Commission (CQC) inspectors, other inspectors e.g. Constabulary may attend. They
commenced from 1 June 2009 with a visit in the next three year period. A notice period of 10
working days is given with inspectors on site for up to 10 days. Inspectors will provide regular and
clear feedback during the inspection.
Grades will be applied as 1, outstanding, 2, good, 3, adequate and 4, inadequate. A single report
will follow but with separate sections and grades, within 20 working days. If inadequate is reported
a further inspection will occur within 12 months.

New Surveys for Children’s Services
Survey

Target

Stage

Tellus 4
Care4me
Aftercare
Ofsted Annual Survey of
Social Workers
Survey of Voluntary and
Community Sectors

CYP through schools
CYP - LAC
CYP - Care leavers
Social Workers

In progress
Will be a consultation
Will be a consultation
Will be a consultation

Voluntary and community Will be a consultation
organisations

Date
Commence
Oct 2009
2009
2009
2009
2009

4

!

Page 100

OVERVIEW OF TIMESCALE
Assessment Findings
Ofsted CS annual performance rating pre-publication rating
CAA Report Published (include Children’s Services Rating)
Narrative web report

Date
Sept 2009
Nov 2009

Each year views fed back to Partnership by
Annual report refreshed
Ofsted Performance Profile reviewed quarterly

January, March, June
November
June, Nov, Jan,
March

RECOMMENATIONS:
1. That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note this report.
2. That the contents of the report are cascaded to partner organisations.

Report Author: Nancy Clarkson
!

Contact: 0151 6664329

5

!

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

